
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The    Local    Authorities    and    Police and    Crime    Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility  of  Local  Authority  and  Police  
and Crime  Panel  Meetings) (England  and  Wales)  
Regulations 2020)  came  into  force  on  Saturday  4 April  
2020  to  enable councils  to  hold  remote  committee  
meetings  during  the Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to 
ensure local authorities can conduct   business   during   this   
current   public   health emergency. 
 
This meeting of Council will be held remotely under these 
regulations, via the Zoom application and will be webcast to 
ensure accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
13 November 2020 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Monday 23 November 2020  at 7.30 pm via Zoom. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 
2020 (previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 

Public Document Pack



Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 
The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider recommendations from the meetings of the Cabinet on 3 November 
and 19 November 2020:- 
 

(a)    Hertfordshire Growth Board (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

(b)    Council Tax Support Scheme (Pages 9 - 10) 
 

(c)    Local Plan  
 

 Recommendation from the special Cabinet meeting on 19 November 
2020.  
 

9.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

10.   MEMBERS' ALLOWANCE SCHEME (Pages 13 - 22) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive on the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel (IRP) at their meeting on the 29 September 2020. 
 

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1244&Ver=4
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1244&Ver=4


11.   REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (Pages 23 - 76) 
 

 Report of the Monitoring Officer on the approval to changes to the Constitution 
as part of the ongoing review and modernisation of the Council’s governance 
processes following consideration by the Constitution Review Group (CRG). 
 

12.   TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2021/22 (Pages 77 - 80) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
on the approval of the timetable of meetings for the 2021/22 Municipal Year. 

13.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY 
MEMBERS  
 
Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lynn Chesterman 

 
“Can the Leader confirm that this Council has in place a plan to ensure that this 
winter, through lockdown and the early months of 2021, that no-one shall be left 
homeless on the Streets of Welwyn Hatfield?” 
 
 

2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Malcolm Cowan 
 

“I am reliably told that adding in the sites being applied for in Peartree, most of 
which appear to have got the nod, will bring the total built since 2010 to over 4000. 
This is more than all the existing homes in Cuffley, Northaw, Brookmans Park and 
Little Heath put together. All in just a few streets. No new schools have been built, 
although one is planned, no additional GP facilities have been provided and no 
public amenity space. Is it not time for a masterplan for the area?” 

 
 
3. Question to the Leader from Councillor Margaret Birleson 

 
“WHBC, along with East Herts, HCC, St Albans and Stevenage, are members of 
the Community Reassurance Cell. Taxi drivers have been encouraged to attend 
online ‘Travel With Confidence’ training earning them accreditation that they can 
advertise plus they can claim £100 towards the cost of fitting the Perspex screen 
between passengers and the driver.  
 
Can you please confirm how many drivers licensed with this Council have 
completed this training and further, how this opportunity was advertised to our 
drivers?” 

 
4. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lucy Musk 

 
“At a recent HCC scrutiny on the Covid 19 response countywide the CEOs of a 
number of voluntary organisations bemoaned the fact that their essential services 
are not included at the start of any emergency plan but have to fill gaps left by the 
statutory services.  
 
Can you please confirm that WHBC does indeed have an emergency plan and 
that our vital voluntary sector is part of that plan from day 1?” 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
For Decision 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 
 

Recommendation from the Cabinet on 3 November 2020:- 
 

172.2. Hertfordshire Growth Board (Forward Plan Reference FP1002) 

Report of the Chief Executive on the Hertfordshire Growth Board Integrated Governance 
Framework. 
 

(1) The Decision Taken 

RESOLVED: 

That Cabinet recommended to Council: 

(1) That it agreed to the establishment of the Growth Board and Growth 
Board Scrutiny Joint Committees (to hold their inaugural meetings in 
January/February 2021 and then HGB Scrutiny aligned to confirmation of 
securing Government funding in 2021) for the Hertfordshire Growth Board 
and that the Council becomes a member of both. 

(2) That the Council adopted the Growth Board Integrated Governance 
Framework into its own constitutional framework. 

(3) That it nominated a member and substitute member as its representative 
to the Scrutiny Committee. (Nominees must not be members of the 
Executive) 

(4) That it noted that the Leader is nominated as the Council’s representative 
on the Growth Board and that the Leader has delegated authority to 
nominate a substitute representative as required. 

 

That Cabinet resolves: 

(5) To appoint the Leader as the Council’s representative on the Joint 
Committee and that he be entitled to nominate a substitute from other 
members of the executive to attend meetings in his absence. 

 

(2) Reasons for the Decision 

Hertfordshire Growth Board (HGB) had been operating since late 2018 as a non-
constituted partnership of the 11 Local authorities and Local Enterprise Partnership 
in Hertfordshire.   
 

The purpose of the Growth Board is taking a longer-term place leadership 
approach to our place ambitions, growth pressures and economic performance, it 
had also promoted effective joint working. 
 

All the authorities had jointly signed the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in 
2019/20, we had signalled to the Treasury and MHCLG of our joint commitment to 
the Growth Board programmes across Hertfordshire and to pursuit of a Growth 
Deal for our area.  Bids for the Single Housing Infrastructure Funding would need 
to be submitted in 2020/2021 and will need to be supported by evidence of an 
appropriate governance model, to give it a legal identity and statutory weight. 
 

Moving to establish a statutory joint committee would bring the work of the Growth 
Board within a legally prescribed process. 
 

Subject to all partners agreeing to establish the joint committees, the first Growth 
Board joint committee could take place in early 2021. The implementation of the 
Growth Board Scrutiny Committee should be aligned confirmation of a successful 
bid, later in 2021.  
 

Click link below for the Hertfordshire Growth Board report:- 
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/documents/s15205/7b%20 
%20Cabinet%20Herts%20Growth%20Board.pdf  

Page 7

Agenda Item 8a

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/documents/s15205/7b%20%20%20Cabinet%20Herts%20Growth%20Board.pdf
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/documents/s15205/7b%20%20%20Cabinet%20Herts%20Growth%20Board.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
For Decision 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 

Recommendation from the Cabinet on 3 November 2020:- 

172.3. Council Tax Support Scheme (Forward Plan Reference FP995) 

Report of the Chief Executive on the localised Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/22. 

(1) The Decision Taken 
 

RESOLVED: 

That Cabinet recommend to Full Council that the localised council tax support 
scheme continued in 2021/22 to help people on low/no income to receive a 
reduction on their council tax. 

(2) Reasons for the Decision 

The scheme fully protects pensioners, families with children under 5, as well as 
certain other vulnerable claimants.  For others, the assessed entitlement is 
calculated on 75% of the Council Tax bill. 

Consultation has taken place with Hertfordshire County Council and the 
Hertfordshire Police and Crime Commissioner on our intention to continue with the 
same scheme.  Both bodies have responded in agreement. 

The cost of the scheme is met through the collection fund, through a reduction of 
the Tax Base.  Based upon the latest information, the cost of the scheme for 
2020/21 is likely to be £7.4M across all preceptors, an increase of £0.4M from 
2019/20, largely because of the impact of the pandemic.  Because the cost is met 
through the collection fund, the impact upon the General Fund will be spread over 
the following 3 years. 

The likely cost for 2021/22, which will impact the General Fund in 2022/23 and 
beyond, will be estimated as part of the budget setting process.  

The likely adverse impact of Covid upon the Council’s share of the cost of the 
scheme for 2020/21 has been included within our estimated loss of Council Tax 
collections as part of our Covid financial impact paper discussed at the Cabinet 
meeting in August. 

 

Click link below for the Council Tax Support Scheme report:-
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/documents/s15207/7c%20-
%20201103%20Council%20tax%20support.pdf    

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8b

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/documents/s15207/7c%20-%20201103%20Council%20tax%20support.pdf
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/documents/s15207/7c%20-%20201103%20Council%20tax%20support.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a special meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL CABINET held on 
Thursday 19 November 2020 at 5.00pm via Zoom.  

 
PRESENT: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Leader of the Council) (Chairman) 
  D.Bell (Deputy Leader and Executive Member, Resources) 

   
  S.Boulton (Executive Member, Environment and Planning) 

  T.Mitchinson (Executive Member, Leisure, Culture and 
Communications) 

  N.Pace (Executive Member, Housing and Community) 
  B.Sarson (Executive Member, Regeneration, Economic 

Development and Partnerships) 

  F.Thomson (Executive Member, Governance, Public 
Health and Climate Change) 

   
 

OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Chief Executive (K.Ng) 
Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) (N.Long) 
Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) 
Head of Law and Administration (M.Martinus) 
Head of Planning (C.Haigh) 
Planning Policy and Implementation Manager (S.Tiley) 
Governance Services Manager (A.Marston) 
Communications Officer (L.Creed) 

 
 
 

 
195. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
Question 1 :- Colin Campbell, Head of Planning, Hill Residential Ltd 
 
The Inspector concluded, in relation to HS22, that 
 

• “potential harm [to the Green Belt] could be successfully mitigated, and a 
permanent defensible GB boundary established. This would enable the 
site’s impact on the wider GB to be limited.” and 

• the benefits of HS22 “particularly its movement sustainability, more than 
outweigh the adverse impact on the purposes of the GB and the loss of 
the site’s openness.” and  

• “exceptional circumstances to justify its removal from the GB.” 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 11

Agenda Item 8c



- 2 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

The Inspector also concludes that “a fundamentally lower housing requirement 
[than 16,000] would not support the national objective to boost the supply of 
housing, which is as relevant in Welwyn-Hatfield as anywhere. It would also 
fail to address housing affordability issues, affordable housing need and the 
housing impediments to the successful economic growth of the Borough.” 
 
What are the planning reasons for departing from the Inspector’s well-
reasoned conclusions on the exceptional circumstances which justify the 
release of HS22 from the Green Belt and its soundness as an allocation which 
is sustainable, is in accordance with the settlement strategy, delivers 
desperately needed new market and affordable homes, and without which 
there is a very real risk that the Royal Veterinary College (as a major 
employer, provider of veterinary services and research output) will be unable 
to continue to invest in its facilities within the Borough? 
 
Response 
 
The Inspector has made it clear that his report is based on an assessed 
housing need of 16,000 dwellings and it is in that context that his comments 
on HS22 relating to exceptional circumstances need to be considered. The 
Inspector has also acknowledged that a lower OAN could be justified. 
 
The Council has concluded that there is evidence to support a lower OAN but 
has accepted that there is a need for a significant uplift to address affordability 
issues.  
 
The exceptional circumstances for releasing this site from the Green Belt have 
to be reconsidered in that context. Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel have 
made recommendations to Cabinet on what it considers to be the appropriate 
balance between making provision for both the economy and the need for 
housing and the protection of the Green Belt. These will now be debated by 
Cabinet before a final decision is made by Full Council. 
 
Question 2:- Stuart W.J. Reid, Principal, RVC 
 
On the 17 November CPPP decided to recommend that the Council pursue a 
lower OAN based on the removal of sites from the submitted plan.  In this 
connection, we would be grateful if the Cabinet could please answer the 
following questions: 
  
Can the Cabinet please set out how the removal of HS22 and HS24 from the 
site allocations, against the direction of the Inspector, has been considered 
and justified with due process in the context of its inclusion in the submitted 
plan and robust support from the Inspector? The Royal Veterinary College is 
deeply concerned that the significant changes proposed to the submitted plan 
risk the plan being found unsound, especially given the Inspector’s clear 
findings on housing need and the submitted spatial strategy.   
  

Page 12



- 3 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

Does the Cabinet / Council acknowledge that the new proposals prevent 
investment in the delivery of a new small animal hospital providing vital 
services to the local community, along with further campus improvements 
supporting education and research, required to maintain the RVC’s world 
leading status?  This investment is reliant on delivering HS22 and HS24.   
  
Are the risks to the Local Plan process, together with potential outcomes, and 
the impact on the RVC’s status fully understood and accepted by the Cabinet? 
 
Response 
 
The Inspector has issued an interim report based on a housing need of 
16,000 dwellings. The response to the previous question has referred to the 
Council’s view that the 2018 Population and Household projections result in a 
reduced need for housing. The Council considers that the exceptional 
circumstances relating to the release of this site for housing therefore need to 
be reconsidered by Members.  
 
The Council is following due process by ensuring these important decisions 
are fully debated by CPPP, Cabinet and Full Council.  
 
It is acknowledged that the RVC is a charity and that the proceeds from any 
sale of land for housing would be reinvested in the College but this is not a 
consideration that should inform the selection on which are the most 
sustainable local plan sites. 
 

196. DECLARATION OF INTEREST BY MEMBER 
 
Councillor S.Boulton declared a non-pecuniary interest in the item on the 
Agenda as a Member of Hertfordshire County Council. 
 

197. ITEM RELATING TO THE BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL 
 
The following item was considered:- 
 

197.1. Local Plan - Objective Assessment of Need and Final Site Selection (Forward 
Plan Reference FP982) 
 
This Special Cabinet meeting has been convened to consider the 
recommendations from the meeting of the Cabinet Planning and Parking 
Panel on 17 November 2020 on the  results  of  the  public consultation,  the  
content  of  the  inspector’s  interim  report  and  other updated evidence in 
order to identify a precise figure for the objective assessment of housing need 
(OAN) over the plan period and to decide which sites should be proposed for 
inclusion in the Local Plan to meet the OAN. 
 
 
 

Page 13



- 4 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

198. PRESENTATION BY HEAD OF PLANNING 
 

198.1. Local Plan 
 
Members may recall that the Local Plan was submitted for examination in 
2017 with a target of 12,000 homes.  
 
The inspector has since advised through the examination process, that it does 
not meet the Council’s objective need. Members debated additional site at the 
Cabinet Planning and Parking meetings in January 2020 and Officers 
presented options to achieve the objective need at that time of 16,000 and 
Members chose to consult on a collection of sites totalling 14,011 homes for 
public consultation. 
 
The reports from Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel take into account: 

• Consultation responses 
• Inspector’s interim report advice on sites. This was received in October 

2020. 
• Updated site and sustainability options from recent hearing sessions and 

other engagement with land owners and site promoters. 
 

198.2. Consultation Responses 
 
The consultation took place between 19 February and 1 May 2020. The 
Council received around 770 comments to document and the Sustainability 
Appraisal from 387 different respondents. 62% of the comments were from 
organisations, bodies, groups, developers and landowners.  
 
33% of comments indicated legal compliance of changes to site allocations 
31% indicated that the changes were not legally compliant  
 
23% indicated that the changes were sound. 
45% indicated that the changes were not sound. 
 
Most of the comments received were about sites in the Green Belt - 

• PB1 had received 88 representations – this was East of Potters Bar 
• BrP1 (Bell Bar) had received 60 representations 

 
198.3. New Assumptions 

 
On the basis of all the information that had been received, since then the 
assumptions have been updated.  
 
Updated completions figure (2,121 dwellings), this includes new dwellings that 
have been built. 
Updated commitments (961 dwellings NOT 1,141 dwellings) 
Updated New Windfall assumptions (1,402 dwellings) 
 

Page 14



- 5 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

Based on issues debated at hearing sessions between March and August 
2020 and new information that was received from applicants and site 
promoters there was some new capacity assumptions for Urban Sites and 
Green Belt Sites. 
 

198.4. Inspector's Interim Report 
 
Received the inspector’s interim report in October 2020. It is a summary of the 
submitted plan based on the learning sessions. 
 
The report seeked to align housing and economic strategies to avoid 
worsening affordability and commuting rates. 
 
The inspector asked the Council which additional housing sites are most 
sustainable to meet the OAN. In the report the inspector assumes the OAN is 
16,000 but acknowledged that it may go down because of the latest 2018 
bases household projections, but commented that a target lower than the 
OAN may not support the national housing crisis or tackle the affordability 
issues in the Borough.  
 
The inspector concluded that there general exceptional circumstances to 
release Green Belt land bust justifies individual sites – acknowledged that the 
Council cannot deliver all of our need on available urban sites but also 
advised that individual sites still need to be justified in terms of exceptional 
circumstances. 
 
Number of comments on particular sites- 
Birchall Garden Suburb South harms openness of Green Belt 
Marshmoor should be considered for housing if Council cannot meet the OAN 
Symondshyde may be selectable if OAN cannot be met from village sites 
 
The inspector identified two options for the Council –  
1.) Propose additional housing sites to meet the OAN 
2.) Withdraw the plan from the examination 
 
The inspector identified a list of deadlines that they would like the Council to 
achieve or the inspector will confirm the plan as unsound if the Council cannot 
achieve the deadlines. 
 

198.5. Clarifications 
 
Table 5  - commitments of 961 dwellings not 1,402 dwellings 
Paragraph 2.8 – housing land supply of 13,277 dwellings not 13,457 dwellings 
Table 5 – housing land supply of 13,277 dwellings not 13,457 dwellings 
 
Paragraph 4.80 should state removal of 700 dwellings (not 600) at Birchall 
Garden Suburb South. 
 

Page 15



- 6 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

Appendix A – Summary of consultation: Interim report comments that “there 
would be no appropriate site on the western edges of Hatfield that could be 
available to deliver a reasonable number of dwellings” but does not 
specifically comment on HAT2. 
 
HS29 and HS30 – Interim report comments that Cuffley is not a particularly 
sustainable location from a transport perspective, that defensible boundary 
could create for these sites but that “demonstration of exceptional 
circumstances will partly depend upon relative amount of overall development 
that is justified in Cuffley and deliverability of other sites”. 
 

198.6. Recommendation 1 
 
That Members identify the most appropriate precise figure for annual rate of 
objectively assessed housing need (OAN) over the plan period 2016-2036. 
 
Officers advised Members of the panel that the office of national statistics has 
published multiple projections. Best practice guidance does not comment on 
what to do in this situation. As a consequence the issues of OAN was raised 
at the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel meeting in September 2020 and 
Officers were asked to bring more information to Councillors. 
 
• Turley (appointed housing consultation) – five year alternative projection = 

715 homes per year (=14,300). Criticised as overly cautious and does not 
reflect projected reduction. 

• ONS ten year projection = 690 homes per year (=13,800). More stable 
outcome, less susceptible to anomalies and economic cycles. 

• ONS two year principal growth projection = 507 homes per year (=10,140). 
Similar to recent growth rates in the Borough but has not improved 
affordability. 

 
Members noted Government has a current standard method = 875 homes per 
year. 
Proposed standard method = 667 homes per year. 
 
Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel agreed that the office of national 
statistics 10 year projection of 690 homes per year (=13,800) is the most 
appropriate precise figure for annual rate of objectively assessed housing 
need (OAN) over the plan period 2016-2036. 
 
It was a more stable outcome, less susceptible to anomalies and economic 
cycles. It is also above the proposed standard method of 667 homes per year. 
 

198.7. Recommendations 2 
 
That Members considered whether they want to change the proposed 
changes for 14,011 homes agreed for consultation in January 2020 based on 
(a) comments submitted to public consultation, (b) judgements in inspector’s 
interim report, (c) updated completions, commitments, brownfield data, (d) 

Page 16



- 7 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

updated site information, in order to achieve identified OAN over plan period 
2016-2036. 
 
• Does not add sites selected for removal in proposed changes consultation 
• It does update completions, commitments and windfall figures 
• Assumes on urban areas such as the Wheat Quarter for 2,000 homes and 

Bio Park for 250 homes 
• It removes 700 at Birchall Garden Suburb South 
• It removes 160 at PB1 east of Potters Bar 
 
The strategy can now deliver 13,277 not 13,457 dwellings. 
 
Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel agreed that housing land supply is 
13,277 homes and agreed that PB1 should be identified as safeguarding land 
to meet longer term housing needs. 
 

198.8. Actions 
 
• That the Head of Planning will immediately write to the inspectors to 

confirm the outcome of recommendation 1 to select the most appropriate 
OAN – This was done on the 18 November 2020. 

• That the submission of changed sites represents a request that the 
inspectors consider them as ‘main modifications’ to the submitted plan. 

• That Officers will continue to advocate decisions made by Full Council to 
examination hearing sessions. 

 
198.9. Risks 

 
• Judicial Challenge – Published and presented properly 
• Risk that the inspector could conclude that the plan is unsound 
• Risk Government instructs another body to prepare the Council’s Local 

Plan 
• Lack of five year housing land supply. If the Local Plan is agreed it would 

enable the Council to have the 5 year plan. 
• Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
• Will struggle to resist proposal for brownfield sites and employment land 
• Will start to receive speculative green belt planning applications 
• Risk of planning by appeal and costs. 
 

199. CABINET DECISION 
 
The Leader thanked the Head of Planning, the Planning & Policy 
Implementation Manager and Officers on their hard work on the Local Plan. 
 
Following discussion it was 
 

RESOLVED: 
(UNANIMOUS) 
 

Page 17



- 8 - 
 
Special Cabinet 
19 November 2020 
 

 
 

That Cabinet agreed the recommendations from the meeting of the 
Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel on 17 November 2020:- 
 
(1) That the new objective assessment housing need (OAN) is 690 per 

year equivalent to 13,800 over the plan period of 2016-2036 based 
on the ten year projection identified. 

 
and 
 
RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL: 
 
(2) That a strategy is put forward for 13,277 dwellings plus allocation of 

site PB1 for safeguarding. 
 
Meeting ended 5.32pm 
AM 
 

 

Page 18



Part I 
Item No: 9 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Max Holloway and 

will be seconded by Councillor Kieran Thorpe:- 

“This Council notes that confirmed cases of coronavirus are increasing across 
the Country. 

This Council notes there is uncertainty among residents about what may happen 
next year when it comes to the elections.  

This Council notes the importance of holding safe elections next year and the 
importance of everyone with the democratic right to vote being able to do so. 

This Council notes that the Electoral Commission has published no evidence 
establishing any concerns in fraud related to postal voting.  

To safeguard democracy in Welwyn Hatfield, this Council resolves: 

 To write, by the end of February 2021, to every eligible elector in the 
constituency not already registered as a postal voter, encouraging them to 
return a completed postal vote application. 

 To include a postal vote form and addressed return envelope for each 
eligible elector with this letter.” 

 
 

2. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Glyn Hayes and 
will be seconded by Councillor Kieran Thorpe:- 

“This Council notes the difficulties experienced by commonwealth veterans in 
securing their leave to remain in the UK following their service in our armed 
forces. 

This Council further notes that following their service, commonwealth veterans 
can be left with steep financial costs to remain in the UK.  

Whilst their applications are ongoing, commonwealth veterans are unable to 
seek employment or claim social security, with many facing NHS bills of tens of 
thousands of pounds for life saving treatment following service that placed their 
own lives at risk for the benefit of us all..  

This Council resolves that the leader of the Council will write to: 

 The Prime Minister 

 The Minister of State for Immigration 

 The Minister of Stare for Veterans 

Outlining this councils support for all commonwealth veterans who have served 
a minimum of 4 years to be granted automatic and free of charge right to remain 
in the UK. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



 

 
And that any veteran who completes 12 years of service to be automatically 
given British Citizenship without charge. 

Finally, this Council resolves to write to Grant Shapps MP on behalf of all 
members of this Council, to ask that he supports a change in the legislation that 
affects those that have served diligently and honourably for this Country but face 
these financial barriers in remaining in the Country that they have served. 

Page 20



- 1 - 

 

Part I 
Item No:  
Main author: Jonah Anthony 
For Resolution 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report considers the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel (IRP) at their meeting on the 29th September 2020. 

1.2 The minutes and recommendations of the IRP meeting on 29 September 2020 
are set out as background papers to this report (Appendix A).  

1.3 These recommendations concern the Members’ Allowance Scheme for 
2020/2021 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Council agrees the recommendation of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel and approves the proposed level of Members’ Basic and Special 
Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) as set out in Appendix B, retrospectively 
payable with effect from 1 July 2020. 

2.2 That Council agrees the recommendation of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel and approves the proposed increase to the Care Allowance Payments. 

2.3 That Council notes a full review of the Members’ Allowance Scheme by the 
Independent Remuneration Panel is now underway, with its recommendations 
aimed to be presented to a future Council meeting, and if agreed, be applied to 
2021/2022 and subsequent years. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In January the Council agreed to the Panel’s recommendation to undertake a 
more comprehensive review of the Members’ Allowances Scheme. However 
given the need to prioritise more urgent activities in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic, there was a delay in recruiting new members and re-convening the 
Panel.  The Panel therefore decided, given this delay, to make 
recommendations for Members’ Allowances in 2020/21 in time for the 
November 2020 Council meeting. In parallel the Panel would carry out a full 
review of all special responsibility allowances (SRAs) with the intention to 
submit further recommendations to a future Council meeting covering the four 
year period 1 July 2021 – 30 June 2025. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

3.2 For this current year (2020-21) the Panel’s recommendations are for Members’ 
allowances to increase in line with the national agreement for staff salary 
increases (an increase of 2.75%). The only exception being to the allowances 
payable to the Opposition Group Leaders and Chair of the Audit Committee. 

3.3 Special consideration was given in 2019/20 to the level of allowances payable 
to Opposition Group Leaders in order to more fairly reflect political balance of 
the parties. It is proposed that this revised methodology will continue 
unchanged, where each Opposition Group Leader receives an allowance 
calculated from 50% of the basic allowance plus £225 for each group member.  
This methodology will incorporate the proposed 2.75% increase to the basic 
allowance. It is also proposed that the additional supplement introduced to 
reflect the additional work currently undertaken by the opposition leaders will 
also continue. The supplement is calculated as being 10% of the basic 
allowance. 

3.4 The Panel noted an anomaly with the allowance provided to the Chair of the 
Audit Committee, which had been slightly out of line with comparable 
allowances for other Committee Chairs since 2015/16. The Panel 
recommended that this allowance be increased by more than the proposed 
2.75% in order to bring it in line with the allowance for other comparable 
Committee Chairs. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The council must set members’ allowances in accordance with the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989  and the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. Before an authority makes or 
amends a scheme, it has a legal duty to have regard to the recommendations 
made by its IRP. 

4.2 The IRP must form at least three members, none of whom is a councillor of the 
authority nor would be so disqualified from being a councillor. The Council 
approved the appointment of three new Panel members at the Council meeting 
on 17 September 2020, bringing the total membership of the IRP to five. 

4.3 The council must ensure that any IRP recommendations and agreed members’ 
allowance schemes are duly publicised in accordance with the statutory 
requirements. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 It is proposed that the level of basic allowance and special responsibility 
allowances (SRAs) are increased by 2.75%, in line with the national agreement 
for staff salary increases. The only exceptions being the allowance provided to 
the Chair of the Audit Committee, which will increase by more than 5% for the 
reasons given above and the Opposition Group Leaders’ allowances. 

5.2 An equivalent increase of 2.75% is proposed for the Care Allowance. 

Page 22



- 3 - 

5.3 The Opposition Group Leaders’ allowances will be recalculated using the 
method introduced in 2019/20 and include the additional supplement. With no 
changes to group numbers, this will result in each of the allowances to be 
approximately £80 less than if a simple 2.75% increase was applied. This is 
due to no uplift being applied to the £225 allowance payable for each group 
member. 

5.4 As in previous years, some members hold more than one office: the scheme 
provides that they only receive the highest of the allowances due. 

5.5 If the proposed increases are agreed this will be covered from current budgets. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 No material risks have been identified with the proposal. 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 None 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 None 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 None 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 None 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 None 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority “Our 
Council”, and specifically to the achievement of promoting equality and 
fairness; supporting our councillors with their professional development so they 
may better work for, and represent, local communities. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was not completed because this report does 
not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of 
new service-related policies. However retention of the carer allowances should 
help encourage potential Members from across the community to put 
themselves forward even if they require support with any carer’s duty they may 
have. 

 

Page 23



- 4 - 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

1. Minutes of the IRP meeting held on 29 September 2020 (Appendix A). 
2. Proposed changes to the Members’ Allowances Scheme and Care Allowances 

(Appendix B) 

 
 
Ka Ng 
Chief Executive 
November 2020 
 

Page 24



- 1 - 
 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL* held on 
Tuesday 29 September 2020 at 2.30pm via the Microsoft Teams application.  
 
* Reporting to Council 
 
PRESENT: R Atterton 

K Cole 
P Legood 
P.Raynsford 
D.Tabraham-Palmer 

 

OFFICIALS Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
(N.Long)  

PRESENT: Governance Services Manager (A. Marston) 
 Principal Governance Officer (J.Anthony) 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN: 
 

The Panel continued with the previously agreed arrangement not to appoint a 
Chairman. However the Panel agreed to keep this under review given that the 
size of the Panel had increased to 5 members. 

 
2. PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME TO REVIEW MEMBERS’ 

ALLOWANCES SCHEME: 
 

 
The Panel noted the intention to convene earlier in the year and undertake a 
more comprehensive review of the Members’ Allowances Scheme. However 
given the need to prioritise more urgent activities in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic, there had been a delay in recruiting and convening this Panel.  The 
Panel therefore agreed to make recommendations for Members’ Allowances 
in 2020/21 in time for the November 2020 Council meeting. In parallel the 
Panel will carry out a full review of all special responsibility allowances (SRAs) 
for a period covering four years from 1 July 2021 with the intention to submit 
recommendations to the March 2021 Council meeting. 

  

2.1. Review of the Members’ Allowance Scheme for 2020/21 
 

(a) Members. Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances 

In line with the national agreement for staff, the report proposed the 
level of basic allowance and special responsibility allowances be 
increased by 2.75%. 

As in previous years, there are some members who hold more than 
one office and the scheme provides that they only receive the highest 
of the allowances due. The Panel noted that the cost impact of any 
increase would need to be within budget. 

 

 

Page 25



- 2 - 
Independent Remuneration Panel 
4 November 2019 
 

 

(b) Chair of the Audit Committee 

The Panel noted an anomaly with the allowance provided to the Chair 
of the Audit Committee, which had been out of sync with comparable 
allowances for other Committees Chairs since 2015/16. The Panel 
recommended that this allowance be increased by more than the 
proposed 2.75% in order to bring it in line with the allowance for other 
comparable Committee Chairs. 

(c) Care Allowance   

No claims have been submitted by Members for the payment of a Care 
Allowance since this was introduced. It was agreed that this scheme 
should continue and the same 2.75% increase as the Members’ Basic 
and Special Responsibility Allowances be applied.  

(d) Opposition Group Leaders 

The Panel noted the changes to how allowances to each opposition 
leader was calculated for 2019/20.  Each opposition leader allowance is 
calculated on the basis of 50% of basic allowance, plus a per capita 
payment of £225 for each group member (with an additional 10% of the 
basic allowance added as a supplement to reflect the additional work 
currently undertaken by the opposition leaders during the period of no 
overall control). The Panel recommended that the same calculation be 
made to determine allowances for each of the opposition leaders for 
2020/21, which would incorporate the 2.75% increase made to the 
basic allowance. 

The Panel’s recommendations would be submitted to the Council meeting on 
23 November 2020 for consideration. A summary table is attached at 
Appendix A. 

 
2.2. Comprehensive Review of the Members’ Allowance Scheme 

 
The Panel noted the objective to establish a four year, index linked, scheme 
from 1 July 2021, having undertaken a comprehensive review of the Members’ 
Allowance Scheme. 
 
The Panel noted that in order to undertake a comprehensive review of the 
Members’ Allowance Scheme it would need: 
 
- Detailed information on the roles, responsibilities and workloads of each of 

the Committee Chairs 
- To receive the views of the Members and Group Leaders 
- Information on any additional regional and local government role which 

may be relevant for consideration 
- Comparable data and appropriate benchmarking for a Council the size and 

located as Welwyn Hatfield is 
 

Following the review the Panel’s recommendations would be submitted to the 
Council meeting on 22 March 2021 for consideration. 

Page 26



Classification: Unrestricted 

- 3 - 
Independent Remuneration Panel 
4 November 2019 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

Recommendations 

(1) That the Panel recommends to the Council that the proposed level of 
Members’ Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances to be paid with 
effect from 1 July 2020 be as set out in the Appendix attached and that 
no other changes be made. 

 
(2) That a full review of all SRAs is carried out with the intention to submit 

recommendations to the March 2021 Council for a four year index 
linked scheme to commence from 1 July 2021.  

 
Meeting ended 3.13pm 

          JA 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 – 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME PROPOSAL 
 

 

 
Per Annum (£) 

2019/20 

Per Annum (£) 

2020/21 

Basic Allowance 5152 5294 

   

Leader of the Council 15455 15880 

Deputy Leader 10817 11114 

Cabinet Member 9870 10141 

Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 4589 4715 

Chairman of Development Management Committee 5152 5294 

Chairman of Hackney Carriage Committee 3962 4071 

Chairman of Cabinet Panel 3962 4071 

Chairman of Audit Committee 3877 4071 

Chairman of Liquor and Regulated 
          Entertainment Licensing Committee 

3962 4071 

Leader of First Opposition Group 6016 6101 

Leader of Second Opposition Group 5791 5876 

Chairman of Standards Committee 2080 2137 

Mayor 6402 6578 

Deputy Mayor 1601 1645 

   

Care Allowance  (Childcare) – up to a maximum of £7.99 per hour £8.21 per hour 

Care Allowance (Dependent Care) – up to a maximum of £12.07 per hour £12.40 per hour 

 

 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part I 
Main author: Alison Marston 
Executive Member: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 
Not Ward Specific 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to changes to the Constitution as 
part of the ongoing review and modernisation of the Council’s governance 
processes following consideration by the Constitution Review Group (CRG) and 
in accordance with one of the key recommendations in the corporate peer 
challenge action plan (as agreed at the Council meeting on 22 July 2019).  The 
revision of the Constitution is an important part of the modernisation programme. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 That Council notes and agrees CRG’s recommendations of the 23 July 2020 as 
set out in Appendix 1 to this report. 

2.2 That Council notes and agrees CRG’s recommendations of the 26 October 2020 
as set out in Appendix 2 to this report. 

2.3 That Council approves the revised sections of the Constitution as set out in the 
relevant appendices to this report as below: 

 Article 4 The Council (Appendix 3) 

 Responsibility for Functions: Council and Council Committees (Appendix 
4) 

 Contract Procedure Rules (Appendix 5) 

2.4 That Council notes and agrees CRG’s recommendation of the 4th November 
2019 regarding motions with a financial implication (Appendix 6). 

2.5 That Council notes that consequential changes have been made to the 
Constitution to reflect changes in officer arrangements following the appointment 
of the interim Chief Executive. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The cross-party Constitutional Review Group (CRG) was re-appointed at the 
2019 Annual Council meeting to review the Constitution and make 
recommendations for change to update and streamline the Council’s governance 
arrangements to reflect the Council’s modernisation programme. The review of 
the Constitution is a continuing and ongoing responsibility. 

3.2 Policy Framework - CRG were asked to give thought to refining the list that 
forms the core suite of documents which form the Council’s Policy Framework. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



 

 

The recommended revised list is within Appendix 3 – Article 4 The Council. 
While updating this section of the Constitution, a reference to the Virtual 
Committee Meeting Procedure Rules has been added within paragraph 4.3 of 
that document. 

3.3 Responsibility for Functions – following the changes to the scrutiny process as 
agreed by Full Council on 27 May 2020, this section has been updated to reflect 
the fact that the previous three committees have been replaced by one Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  

3.4 Licensing Functions – at the meeting of the Constitution Review Group on 26 
October 2020 the group noted that the Council is responsible for licensing a 
diverse range of functions and currently has a number of committees involved in 
licensing work but with relative little business being considered at those 
committees. Additionally, it may be necessary on occasion under the current 
arrangements for Council time to be taken up with detailed licensing discussions. 
Having considered the matter, the CRG therefore recommend: 

a) keeping the Licensing and Regulated Entertainment committee and its 
current remit, but renaming it “Alcohol and Regulated Entertainment 
Licensing Committee” 

b) combining the Hackney Carriage Committee and Licensing Committee 
into a new committee called “Licensing Committee” which will have the 
terms of reference shown in the amended Responsibility for Functions 
table in Appendix 4. 

c) delegating all residual licensing functions, which are currently reserved 
to Council to the new “Licensing Committee”, this will include the 
agreement of the statements of licensing policy,  making of early 
morning alcohol restriction orders, setting of hackney carriage terms 
and conditions and setting of hackney carriage fares.  

d) empowering the Licensing Committee to set up topic  groups as 
required to assist with its work  

e) where fees are not set by statute and may be locally set, the Licensing 
Committee be empowered to make recommendations to Council as part 
of the annual budget process 

3.5 Contract Procedure Rules – at the meeting of CRG on 26 October 2020 the 
group agreed changes to the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to enable all 
competitive procurements are undertaken by the Procurement Department. The 
specific changes to the rules are detailed in Appendix 5. 

A review of the General Procurement Board (GPB) has been undertaken 
regarding which contracts should be considered by the GPB and which ones can 
be dealt with by Officers. Section 25 of the Rules have been updated to reflect 
these changes. The major change is that only contracts over £1 million need to 
be considered by a Procurement Board, with Executive Member discretion below 
this figure.  

Other minor updates to the Contract Procedure Rules include an update to the 
Health and Safety Section (section 4). 

Additional Changes – following the appointment of the previous Corporate 
Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) to the post of Chief 

Page 32



 

 

Executive; and the subsequent appointment of the Head of Resources as the 
Section 151 Officer, consequential amendments have been made to  all parts of 
the Constitution to reflect these changes. Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Section 9P of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) requires a local 
authority to prepare and keep up to date a Constitution.  

4.2 There is also Government Guidance ‘DETR New Council Constitutions Local 
Government Act 2000 Guidance to English Local Authorities’ 

4.3 A Constitution Direction was issued by the Secretary of State, ‘DETR Local 
Government Act 2000 (Constitutions) (England) Direction 2000’, requiring around 
80 matters to be included within council Constitutions. These are prescribed 
matters that must be included in a local authority’s Constitution. 

4.4 These documents should be read in the context of superseding legislation 
including the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and 
Localism Act 2011. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 No direct financial implications although there has and continues to be a 
substantial call on Officer(s) time to service the CRG, draft, re-draft and produce 
any major re-writes to the procedures within the Constitution. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.1.1 Risk: Reputational - proposed changes may not meet everyone’s requirements 
resulting in possible adverse publicity  
Assessment: Medium  
Mitigating Actions: Consider if consultation at appropriate stages may assist. 

6.1.2 Risk: Reputational - Council fails to take the opportunity to modernise the 
Constitution.   
Assessment: Medium  
Mitigating Actions: Officers to continue work to with CRG and Group Leaders to 
help devise and adopt a modern Constitution. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 Members are obliged to consider security and terrorism implications when 
making decisions and any proposed changes to committee structures and 
reporting processes need to ensure such considerations can continue to be 
made. There are no implications under this section for the proposals in this 
report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 Proposed changes to the Contract Procedure Rules are contained within section 
3.5 of the report. 

Page 33



 

 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 A streamlined licensing process which succeeds in reducing the number of 
meetings, number of agenda items and amount of pages in reports will lead to a 
reduction in the carbon footprint of these meetings through less paper, ink and 
fuel use for those having to attend.  

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There is a substantial call on Officer(s) time to service committees and panels 
including time to draft and produce any major re-writes to the procedures within 
the Constitution.  

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no specific identified health and wellbeing implications directly arising 
from the content of this report. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 The Constitution is a public document and will be updated accordingly on the 
website to make it available and assist with the transparency of Governance.  

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 A modernised and updated Constitution will support the Council’s corporate 
priorities corporate and the peer challenge action plan. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in 
connection with the proposals that are set out in this report as it is not currently 
required.  

14.2 However, an EIA may be required when a certain part of the Constitution is 
reviewed e.g. ‘a description of the rights and responsibilities of inhabitants of the 
authority's area’ or ‘a description of the arrangements the authority has in place 
for access of the public, members of the authority and officers of the authority to 
meetings of the authority’ and the need for an EIA will be considered at the 
relevant time. 

 
Name of author Alison Marston 01707 357413 
Title Governance Services Manager 
Date 5 November 2020 
 
 

Appendix 1 Minutes from Constitution Review Group 23 July 2020 

Appendix 2 Minutes from Constitution Review Group 26 October 2020 

Appendix 3 Article 4 – The Council 

Appendix 4 Responsibility for Non-Executive Functions 

Appendix 5 Contract Procedure Rules 

Page 34



 

 

  

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



-1- 
 
Constitution Review Group 
23 July 2020 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the CONSTITUTION REVIEW GROUP held on Thursday 23 
July 2020 at 6.30 pm virtually via Zoom.  

 
PRESENT: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 

F.Thomson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

  A.Dennis (substituting for M.Cowan), G.Hayes, 
F.Marsh, K.Thorpe and S.Wrenn 
 

 
OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
(N.Long) 
Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
(K.Ng) 
Head of Law and Administration (M.Martinus) 
Governance Services Manager (A.Marston) 
Governance Services Officers (H.Johnson) 
 

 

 
43. SUBSTITUTIONS OF MEMBERS 

 
The following substitutions were made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules:  
 
Councillor A.Dennis for Councillor M.Cowan. 
 

44. APOLOGY 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor M.Cowan.  
 

45. MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 27 May 2020 were approved as a 
correct record.  
 

46. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 
The Committee considered the draft Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
draft meeting agenda template, scoring matrix (a mechanism to decide whether 
an issue is of sufficient value to warrant the commissioning of a Scrutiny Task 
and Finish Panel (T&P), single scrutiny event or report to OSC), scoping 
document (to define the clear scope of the scrutiny and plan for its delivery) and 
agenda template for Scrutiny T&Ps. 
 
The following points were raised about the suggested draft documentation: 

Page 37



-2- 
 
Constitution Review Group 
23 July 2020 
 

 
 

 Scoping Document - A list of the corporate priorities could be highlighted. 

 Scoring Matrix - The score could be clarified – such as building in greater 
flexibility into the medium priority score so that it is “considered” and did 
not just depend on resources being available.  Low priority items could go 
on the work programme or a briefing note sent out to Councillors or added 
to the Member Information Hub on MS Teams 

 Member Information Hub – further engagement was required from 
Members and Group Leaders would be following this up.  

 
Officers clarified the scoping document and scoring matrix were tools to assist 
OSC members and that they were working documents and would evolve.  
 
Further potential amendments suggested by OSC on 28 July 2020 meeting 
would go back to the Group.  
 

AGREED:  
 
That the Constitution Review Group agree the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC) meeting agenda template, scrutiny scoring matrix, 
scrutiny scoping document and agenda template for Scrutiny Task and 
Finish Panels, subject to the suggested amendments and potentially 
further amendments by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their next 
meeting.  

 

47. REVISION OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
The group considered the consequential amendments to Constitution documents 
arising from Overview and Scrutiny changes, including Part 1 Summary of the 
Constitution, Article 13 Decision Making, Protocol on Member Officer Relations 
and Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
 
Due to track changes on the documentation being sent as a late item, it was 
agreed Members would email comments to the Monitoring Officer after the 
meeting.  
 

AGREED:  
 
That the Constitution Review Group agree to feedback any comments on 
the consequential amendments to Constitution documents arising from 
Overview and Scrutiny changes (including Part 1 Summary of the 
Constitution, Article 13 Decision Making, Protocol on Member Officer 
Relations and Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules) to the 
Monitoring Officer. Unless any material comments were received, these 
could be agreed.   

 
 
 
 

Page 38



-3- 
 
Constitution Review Group 
23 July 2020 
 

 
 

48. BUDGET MONITORING AND SETTING SCRUTINY BY THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (OSC) 
 
The presentation from the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and 
Cultural Services) set out the proposed budget monitoring and budget setting 
scrutiny by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) to enable discussion. 
 
Quarterly budget monitoring reports would be presented to August, November, 
February and June Cabinet meetings.  As soon as Cabinet papers were 
published the budget monitoring reports would go on the Member Information 
Hub. Budget monitoring reports had previously gone to the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (ROSC). 
 
A reminder had been sent to Group Leaders to follow up with their members to 
get set up on MS Teams where initially the Member Information Hub would 
reside.  
 
Member raised the following points:  
 

 What could be done on MS Teams to avoid duplicate questions from 
Members?  Officers confirmed that all Members could see the 
conservation on MS Teams.  Members could still email Officers privately 
and also ask that the answer be posted on MS Teams. In addition that 
Groups could email questions or post on MS Teams.  

 Would the Information Hub be divided in service areas?  Officers 
confirmed that there would be section on understanding budget and KPIs 
and also divided by service.  

 The new hubs would be trialled by members initially, with any feedback 
such as improving the structure of the hubs being incorporated before 
being finalised.  

 
Budget setting 
 
The current Corporate Plan 2018 – 2021 was due for review this year. The 
budget should follow the corporate priorities. Officers were aiming for a new 
2021 – 2024 Corporate Plan and draft budget proposals to be presented to 
January 2021 Cabinet.  
 
Officers proposed that: 
 

 The new role of OSC could be to create new scrutiny Task and Finish 
Panels (T&Ps) to look at both Corporate Plan and budget proposals.  The 
T&P could be set up from September 2020, meet monthly and then a 
report could be brought to OSC in January 2020. Comments and 
recommendations from OSC could be considered by Special Cabinet in 
late January 2021.  

 The proposals, if agreed by CRG, would be presented to OSC on 28 July 
2020. 

Page 39



-4- 
 
Constitution Review Group 
23 July 2020 
 

 
 

 Any Task and Finish Panel set up with regards to the Corporate Plan and 
budget proposals would meet in private to enable meaningful discussion.   

 The Executive Member for Resources could be invited to the T&P to 
explain the rationale of budget proposals, as set out in the scrutiny 
protocol.   

 
AGREED (unanimous):  

 
(1) That the Constitution Review Group agree to the proposed budget 

monitoring and budget setting scrutiny by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC) as set out in the report.  

(2) That the Constitution Review Group agree that the proposals be 
presented at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 July 2020.  

 
49. REVIEW OF NON-EXECUTIVE COUNCIL FUNCTIONS 

 
The Group considered the review of non-executive council functions, including 
Article 4 the Council and Responsibility for Functions: Council and Council 
Committees. 
 
The Group noted the current documents forming the Council’s policy framework 
as set out in Article 4. The Group were asked to give thought to a refined list that 
should form the core suite of documents that will form policy framework reserved 
to Council. To assist, Officers had reviewed the list and made suggestions of 
what a revised suite of documents could be. Those that were highlighted were 
additional items and those in bold indicated those policies that needed to be 
reserved for decision by Full Council.  
 

AGREED: 
 

That the Constitution Review Group agree to the amended non-executive 
council functions, including Article 4 The Council and Responsibility for 
Functions: Council and Council Committees, subject to adding back in the 
Health and Safety Service Plan. 
 

 
50. DATES OF NEXT MEETING 

 
It was agreed that the date of the next meeting of the Constitution Review Group 
would be Monday 26 October at 6.30pm. 
 

 
Meeting ended at 7.50pm 
HJ 
 

 

Page 40



-1- 
 

Constitution Review Group 
26 October 2020 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the CONSTITUTION REVIEW GROUP held on Monday 26 
October 2020 at 6.30 pm via Zoom 

 
PRESENT: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 

F.Thomson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

  M.Cowan, G.Hayes, F.Marsh, K.Thorpe and S.Wrenn 
 

OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) (N.Long) 
Head of Law and Administration (M.Martinus) 
Procurement Manager (A.Harper) 
Governance Services Manager (A.Marston) 

 

 
52. MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the last meeting held on 23 July 2020 were approved as a 
correct record. 
 

53. CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 
 

Officers explained to the Group that the Commercial and Supplier review was 
one of the first reviews to be completed as part of the modernisation programme. 
One of the major outcomes of the review was that all competitive procurements 
would be managed centrally by the procurement department. At the moment the 
procurement department only undertakes competitive procurements above 
£50,000 in value, with Service Areas undertaking the process below this value.  
 

Changes to the Contract Procedure Rules are to ensure that all competitive 
procurements are undertaken by the Procurement Department.  
 

The Monitoring Officer has used her delegated powers to make minor changes 
to the Contract Procedure Rules to bring things up to date. 
 

Changes were highlighted in the report shared with the Group. 
 

Following discussion it was agreed that: 

 Further amendments would be made to the Health & Safety section to 
tighten it up and remove the disparity of emphasis between that section 
and the safeguarding section. 

 Paragraph 25 will be re-written to include more clarity around General 
Procurement Boards and nominations to boards. 

 

Subject to these further amendments being agreed with the Group via email, 
CRG members agreed they were happy to recommend these proposals to 
Council. 
 
AGREED: 
 

1) The Constitution Review Group recommend to Council on 23 November 
2020 to approve the changes to the Contract Procedure Rules.  

Page 41



-2- 
 

Constitution Review Group 
26 October 2020 
 

 
 

54. PROCUREMENT BOARD PROPOSALS 
 

Following discussions with the Chair of the General Procurement Board, officers 
were asked to look at proposals to improve the process. 
 

The recommendations put forward for agreement from Constitution Review 
Group are: 

 For contracts with a total value of less than £100,000 
No change, officers will continue to oversee the procurement process and 
award the contract. 

 For contracts with a value between £100,000 and £1million 
The Executive Member will decide if the contract is a routine matter or 
not.  

o Routine Matters – Officers will undertake the procurement and the 
award of the contract will be authorised by an Executive Member 
Decision notice  

o Non-Routine – Referred to the General Procurement Board (and 
Cabinet will agree the award of contract) 

 For contracts with a value of over £1million 
These will be overseen by the General Procurement Board and Cabinet 
will continue to be responsible for awarding the contract. 

 

A further recommendation is for the decision to set up new Specific Procurement 
Boards and defining the terms of reference to be able to be made using an 
Executive Member Decision Notice rather than going through Cabinet. 
 

Following discussion it was confirmed that: 

 Membership nominations for specific boards will continue to be put 
forward by the Group Leaders. 

 Executive Member Decision Notices when used to set up new Specific 
Procurement Boards should be signed by two Executive Members: 
wherever possible this should be the relevant portfolio holder and the 
chair of the General Procurement Board. 

 

CRG members agreed they were happy to recommend these proposals to 
Council. 
 
AGREED: 
 

1) The Constitution Review Group recommend to Council on 23 November 
2020 to approve these changes which have been incorporated into the 
revised Contract Procedure Rules.  

 
55. LICENSING COMMITTEES 

 

A presentation was given to the Group outlining the current licensing decision-
making process and proposals to modernise and streamline this. 
 

Currently, multiple committees with a broad range of functions oversee the 
various licensing regimes.  
 

The proposals put to the Group to improve efficiency were: 

Page 42



-3- 
 

Constitution Review Group 
26 October 2020 
 

 
 

 Keeping the Licensing and Regulated Entertainment Committee and its 
current remit but renaming it “Alcohol and Regulated Entertainment 
Licensing Committee”. 

 Combining the Hackney Carriage Committee and Licensing Committee 
into a new committee called “Licensing Committee”, which will have the 
terms of reference shown in appendix B (of the officer’s report). 

 Delegating all residual licensing functions, which are currently reserved to 
Full Council, to the new “Licensing Committee”; this will include the 
agreement of the statements of licensing policy, the making of early 
morning alcohol restriction orders, the setting of hackney carriage terms 
and conditions, the setting of hackney carriage fares. 

 Empowering the Licensing Committee to set up topic groups to assist with 
its work. 

 Where fees are not set by statute and may be locally set, the Licensing 
Committee be empowered to make recommendations to Full Council as 
part of the annual budget process. 

 

Following discussion it was agreed that: 

 Topic groups, or sub committees are key to ensuring members are 
involved. 

 Training for those involved will be arranged as required. 
 

CRG members agreed they were happy to recommend these proposals to 
Council. 
 
AGREED: 
 

1) The Constitution Review Group recommend to Council on 23 November 
2020 to approve the changes to the Licensing Functions of the Council as 
outlined above.  

 
 

56. INFORMATION HUB UPDATE 
 

Officers ran through the current use of the Information Hub, outlining the type of 
items that have been published for members and the engagement received. 
 

An overview of the second hub that will sit alongside the first was given, this 
“Service Information Hub” will be split into the nine service areas and each will 
have contact details for the team and a summary of what they cover, as well as 
then posting information of interest to members. 
 

The proposal was put to the Group for the Service Information Hub to include 
reports from teams that would previously have gone to Committees or Panels 
“for information” only. Members were in agreement to this 
 

Members gave positive feedback on the information hub, the ease of interactions 
and use of the “thumbs up” feature, as well as the quick response to questions 
that have been posed on there. They confirmed that tagging councillors when 
items are posted is helpful as they then get an email notification. 
 

Training for Councilors on the use of MS Teams was confirmed to have been 
booked for November 2020. 
 

Page 43



-4- 
 

Constitution Review Group 
26 October 2020 
 

 
 

57. DATES OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Constitution Review Group was agreed to take place on 
Monday 14 December at 6.30pm. 
 

58. SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 
 

 
Meeting ended at 7.22 pm 
AM 

 

Page 44



Revised 
September 2018 

1 

 

 

4. ARTICLE 4 - THE COUNCIL 
 
 

4.1. Meanings 

(a) "The policy framework" means the following plans and strategies:- 

  Annual Report 

 Asset Management Plan 

 Business Plan 

 Capital Strategy 

 Crime and Disorder Strategy 

 Development Plan Documents submission for independent 
examination and adoption 

 Single Equality Scheme 

 Health and Safety Service Plan 

 Housing and Homelessness Strategy 

 Tenancy Strategy 

 Housing Business Plan 

 Housing Asset Strategy 

 Investment Strategy 

 Licensing Authority Policy Statement 

 Local Plan 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Pay Policy Statement 

 Plans/Strategies relating to Budgets 

 Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 

 All plans that by law must be determined by the Council 
 

(b) "The budget" means the approval or adoption of the allocation of financial 
resources to different services and projects, proposed contingency funds 
and decisions relating to the control of the Council's borrowing 
requirements, the control of its capital expenditure and the setting of 
virement limits. 

 
(c) "Housing Land Transfer" means the approval or adoption of applications 

(whether in draft form or not) to the Secretary of State for approval of a 
programme of disposal of 500 or more properties to a person under the 
Leasehold Reform Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 or to 
dispose of land used for residential purposes where approval is required 
under sections 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985. 

 
4.2. Functions of the Council 

 

Unless otherwise specified only the Council will exercise the following 
functions:- 

(a) adopting and changing the Constitution; 

(b) approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any 

Appendix 3 

Page 45



Revised 
September 2018 

2 

 

 

application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land 
Transfer as proposed by the Cabinet or Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees; 

(c) making decisions about any matter in the discharge of an executive 
function which is not within the budget or policy framework, unless the 
decision is urgent within the meaning set out in the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution; 

(d) appointing the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the Council, the Leader of the 
Council and Members of the Council's Committees (apart from the 
Cabinet); 

(e) receiving annual reports from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees in 
relation to their work; 

(f) agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for Committees, 
exercising non executive functions, deciding on their composition and 
making appointments to them; 

(g) appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is an 
executive function or has been delegated by the Council; 

(h) adopting an allowance scheme set out in Part 6 of this Constitution; 

(i) changing the name of the area, conferring the title of Honorary Alderman 
or Freedom of the Borough; 

(j) confirming the appointments of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer 

(k) making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and 
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills; 

(l) exercising all Local Choice Functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution 
which the Council decides should be undertaken by itself or delegated to 
non-executive committees rather than the Cabinet; and exercising the 
necessary functions in the selection and appointment of auditors and/or to 
the Council, under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 

(m) debating and deciding the response to petitions containing more than 
1,500 signatures that are matters reserved to the Council 

(n) all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to the Council. 
 
4.3. Council Meetings 

 

There are three types of Council meeting:- 
 

 the annual meeting 

 ordinary meetings 

 extraordinary meetings 
 

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council's Procedure Rules 
set out in Part 4 of this Constitution and while in force, the Virtual Committee 
Meeting Procedure Rules. 

Page 46



RESPONSIBILITY FOR NON-EXECUTIVE COUNCIL FUNCTIONS 
 

WHO IS RESPONSIBLE MEMERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

   Functions are delegated to 
Officers to the extent listed in 
the Responsibility for 
Functions in Part 3 of the 
Council's Constitution. 

Council 48 Members 
of the 
Council 

Unless otherwise specified, only the Council will exercise the following 
functions:- 

 

1. Adopting and changing the Constitution. 
 

2. Approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any 
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing 
Land Transfer as proposed by the Cabinet or Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 

3. Making decisions about any matter in the discharge of an 
executive function which is not within the budget or policy 
framework, unless the decision is urgent within the meaning set 
out in the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in Part 4 
of the Council's Constitution. 

 

4. Appointing the Leader, Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the Council. 
 

5. Receiving an annual report from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in relation to its work. 

 

6. Agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for Committees, 
exercising non-executive functions, deciding on their composition 
and making appointments to them. 

 

 
 
 

 

Revised 
June 2020 

Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS 

52
 

Appendix 4 

P
age 47



Revised 
June 2020 

53  

WHO IS RESPONSIBLE MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

   

7. Selecting and appointing external auditors or auditor panels under 
the provision of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

 

8. Appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the 
appointment is an executive function or has been delegated by 
the Council. 

 
9. Adopting an allowance scheme set out in Part 6 of the Council's 

Constitution. 
 

10. Changing the name of the area, conferring the title of Honorary 
Alderman or Freedom of the Borough. 

 
11. Confirming the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, 

Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. 
 
12. Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and 

promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal 
Bills. 

 

13. Exercising all Local Choice Functions set out in Part 3 of the 
Council's Constitution which the Council decides should be 
undertaken by itself or delegated to non-executive Committees 
rather than the Cabinet. 

 

14. Debating and deciding the response to petitions containing more 
than 1,500 signatures, for Council functions. 

 
15. All other matters which, by law, must be reserved to the Council. 

 

P
age 48



 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

    

Standards 
Committee 
and Sub- 
Committees 

6 Members 
comprising 5 
Council Members  
(to include one 
Executive Member) 
and 1 non-voting 
Co-opted Local 
Councils 
Association 
Representative 
(plus Independent 
Persons) 

Reporting direct to Council 

Its responsibilities are: 

1. Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
Members and Co-Opted Members of the authority. 

 
2. Advising and assisting Town and Parish Councils and 

Councillors to maintain high standards of conduct and to make 
recommendation to Town and Parish Councils on improving 
standards or actions following a finding of a failure to comply 
with the Code of Conduct by a Town or Parish Councillor. 

 
3. To progress complaints on behalf of Town and Parish Councils. 

The Head of law and Administration 
is the Council's Monitoring Officer in 
accordance with the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 
(Section 5) and has statutory functions 

under the Localism Act 2011 in 
relation to keeping of a Register of 
Members' Interests, and in relation 
to conduct matters which have been 
brought to the Council's Standards 
Committee. These functions apply 
to Members and voting co-opted 
Members of the Council and all 
Parish/Town Councils within its 
area. 

  4. Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members' 
Code of Conduct. 

 

  
5.  To receive referrals from the Monitoring Officer into allegations  of 

misconduct in accordance with the authority assessment 
criteria. 

 

  
6. Receiving reports from the Monitoring Officer and assessing the 

operation and effectiveness of the Members' Code of Conduct. 

 

  
7. Arranging to train Members and Co-Opted Members on matters 

relating to the Members' Code of Conduct. 

 

  
8. Assisting Councillors and Co-Opted Members to observe the 

Members' Code of Conduct. 

 

 

 
 

Revised 
June 2020 

Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS 

54
 

P
age 49



Revised 
June 2020 

55  

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

   

9. Hearing and determining complaints about Members and Co- 
Opted Members referred to it by the Monitoring Officer. 

10. Advising the Council upon the contents of and requirements for 
codes/protocols/other procedures relating to standards of 
conduct throughout the Council. 

 
11. Maintaining oversight of the Council's arrangements for dealing 

with complaints. 
 

12. Informing Council and the Chief Executive of relevant issues 
arising from the determination of Code of Conduct complaints. 

 

13. To establish a sub-committee/hearings panel for hearing and 
determining complaints about Members and Co-Opted Members 
referred to it by the Monitoring Officer including the imposition of 
any actions where considered appropriate. 

 
14. Reviewing Council use of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 

Act. 
 
15 Considering the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

13Members of 
the Council,  
who are not to 
include 
Members of the 
Cabinet 

The Council has appointed an Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
discharge certain of its functions relating to call-in, policy and budget 
review and development and the scrutiny of decision making. 

 

 

 

P
age 50



Revised 
June 2020 

57  

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

   

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will:- 

(1) exercise call-in of Cabinet decisions; 

(2) assist Council and Cabinet with the development of its 
strategic budget and policy framework; 

(3) carry out or commission full and comprehensive reviews of 
any of the Council's policies, strategies or operations 
relating to the Council's functions ; 

(4) make reports and/or recommendations to the Cabinet in 
connection with the discharge of any its functions; 

(5) consider any matter affecting the borough  or its inhabitants. 

(6) access through an information hub, key performance data 
and other service information, in order to fulfil its functions. 
; 

(7) make reports and/or recommendations to the Council 
and/or the Cabinet in connection with the discharge of any 
functions; 

(8) set its own work programme and agenda 

(9) provide an annual report to Council on its work programme 
and outcomes achieved.  

 

 

 

P
age 51



Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS 

Revised 
June 2020 

60 
 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

    

Audit 
Committee 

7 Members of the 
Council  

The Audit Committee will have the following key purposes: 
 

1. To provide independent assurance of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council's control environment - the systems 
of governance, internal control and risk management, 

 

  
2. To independently scrutinise the Council's financial and non- 

financial performance to the extent that it impacts on the Council's 
control environment, 

  
3. To oversee the Council's financial reporting process. 

  
4. To review and make recommendations to the Council on the 

selection/appointment of external auditors. 

  
In order to effectively discharge these responsibilities, the Audit 
Committee may require any officer to attend meetings of the 
Committee so it may receive explanations regarding any matter that it 
is considering. 

  
Further, the Chairman and Members of the Audit Committee may have 
contact with the Council's External Auditor, Internal Auditor or Head of 
Resources at any time and all of these may also request access to the 
Committee or its Chairman, if appropriate. 

  
Role and Functions 

P
age 52



Revised 
June 2020 

61 Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS  

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

  1. To consider the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's 
control environment - the systems of governance, internal control 
and risk management. 

 

2. To consider and be satisfied that the Council's Annual 
Governance Statement, together with any other assurance 
statements, properly reflect the Council's control environment and 
to monitor management action in response to any significant 
Governance Issues identified. 

 

3. To consider and approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit Team's 
Strategy and the Annual Plan and to monitor their performance. 

 

4. To consider the Internal Audit Team's reports and to monitor 
management action to implement agreed recommendations. 

 

5. To consider the Annual Internal Audit Report. 
 

6. To consider and approve the External Auditors' Audit and 
Inspection Plan and associated fees. 

 

7. As the body designated as "those charged with governance" 
under the International Standards of Auditing (ISA 260), to:- 

 

(a) consider the External Auditor's Annual Governance Report. 
 

(b) accept or reject Officers' recommendations to amend the 
Council's Statement of Accounts in respect of any non- 
material matters identified. 

 

P
age 53



Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS 

Revised 
June 2020 

62 
 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

  8. To consider the External Auditors' reports and monitor 
management action in response to any issues raised and/or 
recommendations made by the External Auditors. 

 

9. To consider the reports of Inspection Agencies and any other 
relevant bodies, where they relate to governance issues. 

 

10. To ensure that there are effective relationships between External 
and Internal Audit, Inspection Agencies and other relevant 
bodies, and that the value of the audit process is actively 
promoted. 

 

11. To consider and approve the Council's Statement of Accounts. 
 

12. To consider reports in relation to Emergency Planning, Risk 
Management and Business Continuity and monitor management 
action in response to any issues raised and/or recommendations 
made. 

 

13. To consider reports in relation to Performance Management - 
both financial and non-financial - and to monitor management 
action in response to any issues raised and/or 
recommendations made, 

 

14. To consider the review of any issue referred to it by the Chief 
Executive, Directors, the Head of Resources, Head of 
Governance, or the Council's Internal Auditors which falls within 
the remit of the Committee - these reviews could include reports 
on fraud, corruption and irregularities. 

 

P
age 54



 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

  15. Annual Report - the Audit Committee must report annually to the 
Council on its working and make recommendations for future 
work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate. 

 

General 
 

The Committee may review periodically and, if necessary, propose 
changes to the Committee's role and responsibility for functions to the 
Council. 

 

Development 
Management 
Committee 

13 Members of 
the Council 
(may include 
one Cabinet 
Member, but 
not as the 
Chairman or 
Vice-
Chairman 

To be responsible for all matters relating to Development Management, 
Enforcement and all Town Planning matters under the Town and 
Country Planning legislation, Public Health, Clean Air and 
Environmental Protection and Highways Acts. 

Functions are delegated to the 
Corporate Director (Public 
Protection, Planning and 
Governance) to the extent as 
detailed in Part 3. 

Licensing 
Committee 

7 Members of the 
Council  

1. To consider applications for local licences (excluding licences 
dealt with by the Licensing and Regulated Entertainment 
Committee ), registrations and consents where either 
representations have been received or the Corporate Director 
(Public Protection, Planning and Governance) or Head of 
Public Health and Protection considers a decision by members 
is more appropriate having regard to the circumstances of the 
application.   

2. To consider whether hackney carriage/private hire vehicle, 
driver or operator licences should be suspended or revoked. 

3. To agree the procedures for licensing hearings on behalf of 
the council. 

 
 

 
Functions 1-10 are delegated to the 
Corporate Director (Public 
Protection, Planning and 
Governance) to the extent as 
detailed in Part 3. 

P
age 55



Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS 

Revised 
June 2020 

64 

 

4. To approve the council’s statements of licensing policy and 
principles 

5. To determine conditions to be placed on licences (excluding  
licences dealt with by the Licensing and Regulated 
Entertainment Committee) 

6. To  agree standard terms and conditions for licences 

7. To determine hackney carriage fares 

8. To make early morning alcohol restriction orders  

9. As part of the annual budget process to make 
recommendations to full council as regards the setting of 
licensing fees   

10. To deal with all other licensing matters on behalf of the Full 
Council except where statute demands they are dealt with by 
other means 

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 

Alcohol and 10 to15 Members 1. To consider applications in connection with personal licences, 
premises licences, club premises, certificates and notifications 
of temporary event notices and all other applications/ 
notifications made under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Functions are delegated in 

Regulated of the Council. accordance with the Council's 

Entertainment 
Licensing 

The political Statement of Licensing Policy made 

Committee proportionality pursuant to Section 5 of the 

 rules do not apply. Licensing Act 2003 and the 

 
 
 
 

P
age 56



Revised 
June 2020 

65 Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS  

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

  2. To consider applications in connection with premises licences, club 
gaming permits, club machine permits, licensed premises 
gaming machine permits, prize giving permits and all other 
applications/notifications/registrations made under the 
Gambling Act 2005. 

Gambling Act Statement of 
Principles made pursuant to Section 
349 of the Gambling Act 2005. 

3. To conduct hearings in respect of any of  the  applications  referred 
to in 1 and 2 above in accordance with the Council's Statement 
of Licensing Policy and the Council's Gambling Act statement of 
principles. 

 

4. To conduct hearings following requests to review premises 
licences and the type referred to in 1 and 2 above. 

 

5. To deal with such hearings in accordance with the procedure 
laid down by the Council and regulations. 

 

6. To deal with such hearings in accordance with the relevant 
legislation and with established Council policy and licensing 
conditions. 

 

7. To determine whether to object when the Council is a consultee and 
not the relevant authority considering an application made under 
the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005. 

 

8. To cancel club gaming or club machine permits. 
 

9. To determine whether to give a counter notice to a temporary 
use notice. 

 

P
age 57



Part 3: RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section1: COUNCIL/CABINET/COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS/GROUPS 

Revised 
June 2020 

66 

 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

  10. To withdraw Club Premises Registration Certificates under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 

11. To delegate appropriate matters to a Sub Committee set up in 
accordance with the Council's statement of licensing policy. 

 

12. To determine whether to give a counter notice to a temporary 
event notice. 

 
13. To consider applications under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 

2013. 

 

Grants Board 7 Members of the 
Council  

Acting in accordance with the Council's budget provision for grants 
and in accordance with the Community Grants Policy to be 
responsible for the allocation of small community grants and the 
Golden Jubilee Awards for young people and to make 
recommendations to the Cabinet on the allocation of larger annual 
grants. 

 

Member 
Development 
Steering 
Group 

4 Members of the 
Council  

1. To be responsible for the Members' Skills Audit. 
 

2. To agree the annual Member Induction Programme. 
 
3. To agree the annual Member Development Programme in 

response to Members' needs and corporate requirements. 
 
4. To lead on and work with the Hertfordshire Member 

Development Network. 

 

 
 

P
age 58



Classification: Unrestricted 

67 
Revised 
June 2020 

 

 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 

MEMBERSHIP NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 

  5. To receive and monitor the effectiveness of the development 
and induction programmes to ensure that Members' needs are 
met. 

 

6. To encourage Members from all political groups to attend 
Member Development sessions and to monitor non-attendance 
and the reasons for this. 

 

7. To consider all methods of learning and, where possible, make 
these available to Members. 

 

8. To support Members' Community Leadership role. 

 

Statutory 
Officers 
Disciplinary 
Panel 

5 Members of 
the Council 
(3:1:1) 

 

2 
Independent 
Persons 

Under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2015: 

 

 to advise and make recommendations to the Council on any 
proposal to dismiss a Statutory Officer. 

 to agree and commission an independent investigator and 
consider any submitted report arising from the investigation 
into any allegations of misconduct by a Statutory Officer. 

 to determine, following an investigation, any sanctions to be 
applied to a Statutory Officer, short of dismissed. 

 to suspend a Statutory Officer pending investigation 

 to act proportionately, rationally and legally and in accordance 
with the advice of the Independent Person(s) 

 

 

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Revised November 2020 

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES – UPDATED November 2020 
 

1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 
 

The purpose of these Contract Procedure Rules is to ensure that any external 
procurement process for services, work or goods achieves best value and is 
transparent, open and fair making it possible for all decisions to be audited 
satisfactorily.  They must be followed every time the Council wishes to enter 
into an external contract for services, work or goods. 

 
2. PRINCIPLES OF GOOD PROCUREMENT 
 

The principles of good procurement are:- 
 
2.1 Achieving value for money and compliance with these Procedure Rules, the 

Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and European Public Procurement 
Legislation  

 
2.2 Balancing the needs of the Council and the potential contractor.  The 

procurement process should give the Council sufficient information to form a 
sound view of a potential contractor’s competence but without placing 
unreasonable burdens on them. 

 
2.3 Potential contractors should understand from the outset what categories of 

information and general standards and responsibilities will be expected of 
them.  They should be provided with adequate, accurate and timely 
information at all relevant stages of the procurement process. 

 
2.4 All decisions should be based on objective measures that are justifiable in 

terms of the matters specified under the contract. 
 
2.5 All potential contractors, should be subject to the same requirements and be 

treated equally throughout the procurement process. 
 
2.6 All potential contractors should be made fully aware of the basis for evaluation 

of tenders. 
 
2.7 The Procurement Handbook gives further details on the processes behind 

delivering the principles. 
 
3. PROCUREMENT AND BEST VALUE 
 

The Council recognises the duty to achieve best value in the provision of all of 
its services.  This duty requires every procurement process, over the value of 
£50,000 to include consideration of:- 

 
3.1 The possibility of building in a requirement for continuous improvement in 

contracts. 
 

Appendix 5 

Page 61



 

 
Revised November 2020 

3.2 Ensuring sufficient information is obtained in respect of the following matters:- 
 
3.2.1 all relevant experience and track record over the past three years (five years 

for works contracts) in providing similar services, and at least two referees 
that can be called upon to vouch for performance; 

 
3.2.2 background information on the organisation, financial accounts for last two 

years, average annual staffing for the previous three years and details of staff 
involved in the provision of the service in question, including their 
qualifications and training, TUPE track record where relevant; 

 
3.2.3 details of quality accreditation, documentation and procedures, including 

health and safety management, staff management and employment practices, 
environmental policy, as relevant to the performance of the contract; 

 
3.2.4 details of convictions for criminal offences or of any acts of grave misconduct 

relating to the potential contractor’s business or profession including details of 
cases over the last three years where the potential provider has been found 
by a Court or Tribunal to have breached the requirements of employment 
protection, including legislation under the Equality Act 2010 (including matters 
on sex, race, disability) and health and safety matters.  Details of any 
appropriate remedial actions taken should also be included. 

 
The list is not exhaustive and where relevant to the performance of the 
contract further detailed questions can be asked. 

 
4. HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 

The Council must be satisfied in any relevant procurement process that 
potential providers have satisfactory systems for managing health and safety 
in relation to the matters concerned. 
 

 
For all relevant contracts bidders will be required to complete the standard 
Health and Safety questionnaire in line with guidance from the Crown 
Commercial Services. 
 
Bidders that have successfully met the assessment requirements of a 
construction-related scheme and have registered membership of the Safety 
Schemes in Procurement (SSIP) forum will automatically pass the Health and 
Safety evaluation and no further information will be required. 
 
Those bidders who do not meet this requirement will be required to complete 
the relevant questionnaires which will include supplying the following 
information: 

 
  

 The provider’s current Health and Safety Policy; 

 Details of access to competent health and safety advice and evidence 

of competency. 

Page 62



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 Policy for employee information, instruction and training and 

assessment of competency. 

 Example risk assessments, method statements and safe working 

practices. 

 Accident statistics, including those reported under the Reporting of 

Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 

 Details of any enforcement notices or prosecutions served by the HSE 

or the Local Authority and corrective action taken to prevent repetition. 

 
Monitoring arrangements must be in place post contract award to ensure that 
health and safety matters are being properly addressed.  Such arrangements 
will include, but not be limited to: 
 

 Visits to work locations to undertake compliance audit and inspection 

activities.  Such visits may be planned or unplanned; 

 Attendance at meetings between the Council and the provider at a 

frequency agreed with the client officer, to review and discuss health 

and safety matters and performance; 

 Provision of key performance indicators by the provider, as agreed with 

the Council, at a frequency to be determined by the Council; 

 Reviews of key documentation, such as risk assessments, records and 

method statements. 

 
Where the Council employs a Contractor, irrespective of the value of the 
appointment, who has a physical presence on a Council owned or managed 
site, then a health and safety assessment must be undertaken by the 
Council’s Risk and Resilience team before the work commences. The Risk 
and Resilience team may request extra information from the Contractor before 
they are permitted to work on site. This assessment only needs to take place 
on one occasion for each Contractor, as long as the scope of their contract 
does not change. 
 

5. EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND SAFEGUARDING 
 
5.1 The Council is committed to equality of opportunity, both as an employer and 

service provider.  The Council recognises that the Council’s equality values, 
principles and standards underpin everything the Council represents and aims 
to achieve. The Council wants to ensure its services are as accessible as 
possible and are designed in a way that best meets the needs of the 
community. 

  
The Council has five Equality and Diversity objectives, which apply to all 
services - including services provided by contractors: 

  

1. We will lead by example within the community, promoting equality of 
opportunity and fairness. 

Page 63



 

 
Revised November 2020 

2. We will value and understand the diversity of our communities, for the 
benefit of our customers and all residents of the borough. 

3. We will deliver fully accessible, fair and inclusive services. 
4. We will provide equal opportunities to our employees and encourage a 

culture of equality within the work place. 
5. We will consult with residents and the community on matters which affect 

them, taking into account the diversity of our borough. 

In order to satisfy these commitments, those submitting an application for a 
tender are required, to respond and provide evidence in respect of the 
following matters: 

 Their experience of delivering services in a multi-cultural community. 

 Their strategies for ensuring equality of access to services. 

 Examples of and outcomes arising from consultation undertaken with 
service users and/or proposals for how such consultation might be 
undertaken. 

 Evidence that information and services they provide are accessible to   
those for whom they are relevant irrespective of age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation. 

 How they would work towards building a workforce that reflects the 
diversity of the community in Welwyn Hatfield. 

 How they would comply with the Council’s commitment to equality and 
the objectives set out above. 

 
5.2 The Council’s standard contract terms and conditions include obligations 

relating to equality and diversity. 
 
 
SAFEGUARDING 
 
5.3 The Council is committed to safeguarding children and vulnerable adults both 

as an employer and service provider.  The Council has both a moral and a 
legal obligation to ensure the highest possible standard of care for those 
vulnerable people who use and have access to our services as well as those 
we commission and contract out. 
 

5.4 The Council is committed to providing safe activities and opportunities.  The 
Council understands that it has a duty to safeguard those individuals placed in 
our care and to facilitate the best possible professional practice from the 
Council, its employees, elected members, volunteers and those individuals, 
companies or organisations that provide goods or services, or undertake work 
for and on behalf of the Council.  
 

5.5 The Council’s safeguarding policy details the Council’s approach and 
commitment to safeguarding vulnerable people.  It includes the Council’s 
requirement to work with partner organisations in a collective commitment to 

Page 64



 

 
Revised November 2020 

safeguarding and that the same commitment will also be required of those 
providing a service on behalf of the Council. 
 

5.6  In order to satisfy these commitments, those submitting an application for a 
relevant tender are required to respond and provide evidence in respect of the 
following matters:  
 

 The organisation has a clear and suitable statement and/or policy with 
regards to safeguarding children and vulnerable adults 

 Their experience (where relevant) of delivering services to vulnerable 
individuals or groups. 

 That there is a clear line of responsibility across the organisation with 
regards to safeguarding and safeguarding referrals 

 That the organisation has a training programme for all employees that 
includes safeguarding, where this is relevant. 

 Evidence that where required safer recruitment policies and processes 
are in place. 

 Evidence that the services they provide safeguard both their 
employees and the public they serve 

 
5.7  The Council’s standard contract terms and conditions include obligations 

relating to safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. 
 

6. PUBLIC SERVICES (SOCIAL VALUE) ACT 2012 
 
6.1 The Public Services (Social Value Act) encourages the Council to talk to their 

local provider market or community to design better services, often finding 
new and innovative solutions to difficult problems.  Before the start of the 
procurement process, the relevant officer should think about whether the 
services they are going to buy, or the way they are going to buy them, could 
secure these benefits for their area or stakeholders.  

 
6.2 For over (EU) threshold contracts the inclusion of Social Value criteria is 

essential in any procurement. For below threshold contracts, the inclusion of 
Social Value criteria should be proportionate to the value and relevance of the 
contract  

 
7. TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS (PROTECTION OF EMPLOYMENT) 

REGULATIONS 2006 (“TUPE”) (as amended) 
 
7.1 TUPE should be presumed to apply in any procurement process involving the 

contracting out of a service area with a discrete budget and staff assigned to 
it.  The exception to this is if there are genuine exceptional reasons for TUPE 
not to apply.  These could be any of the following:- 

 
7.1.1 where a contract is for the provision of both goods and services, but the 

provision of services is ancillary in purpose to the provision of the goods; or 

Page 65



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 
7.1.2 where the matter being contracted is essentially new or a one off project; or 
 
7.1.3 where services or goods are essentially a commodity bought “off the shelf” 

and no grouping of staff are specifically and permanently assigned to a 
common task; or where the features of the service or function subject to the 
contracting exercise are significantly different from the features of the function 
previously performed within the Council, or by an existing contractor e.g. a 
function to be delivered electronically and in such a way that it requires 
radically different skills, experience and equipment. 

 
7.2 Invitations to tender should state that staff are to transfer pursuant to TUPE 

and sufficient information should be provided to enable potential providers to 
cost the effect of TUPE applying and staff transferring to them.  The Human 
Resources service area will deal with the provision of the appropriate 
information.  Pensions provided to transferred staff must be certified by the 
Government Actuary as “broadly comparable” with the Local Government 
Superannuation Scheme.  There should also be an agreement with the new 
employer’s pension scheme providing that staff will be able to transfer their 
accrued service credits into that scheme on a day-for-day, or equivalent, 
basis.  Alternatively, transferred staff may continue to have access to the 
Local Government Superannuation Scheme provided that the Contractor 
agrees to this and enters into an Admission Agreement and Admission Bond 
with Hertfordshire County Council - the ‘Administering Authority’ for the 
Pension Fund - and with Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council.  Advice on the 
applicability of TUPE and the clauses to be inserted in invitations to tender 
and contracts should be sought in the first instance from the Procurement 
Manager.  

 
7.3 TUPE should also be presumed to apply to a procurement process when an 

external contract is to be re-let where there are staff involved.  Invitations to 
tender should state that staff are to transfer pursuant to TUPE and information 
relating to pay, bonus payments, allowances, holiday entitlement and pension 
details should be obtained from the incumbent Contractor before the Invitation 
to Tender is issued and the information must form part of the Invitation to 
Tender to enable potential providers to cost the effect of staff transferring to 
them. 

 
8. ELECTRONIC  PROCUREMENT 
 
8.1 All procurements, with a value greater than £10,000 must be undertaken 

using the E Procurement system. To ensure a fully auditable process, all 
correspondence during the tender process must be transmitted through this 
system. 
 

8.2 It should be made clear in any invitation to quote/tender documents that any 
tender must be submitted through this system and that any tenders received 
in hard copy or by any other means (such as e-mail) will be rejected.  

Page 66



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 
9. EXPENDITURE AND AUTHORISATION THRESHOLDS 
 
9.1 All purchases are subject to the following procedure:- 

 

Estimated 
Value 

Minimum 
No. of 
Quotations/
Tenders 

Council 
Seal 

Notes Authorisation to 
award contract 

Under 
£10,000 

(Obtain a 
minimum of 
one written 
quotation)  

No Although a formal 
procurement process does 
not need to be followed, 
value for money still needs to 
be demonstrated e.g. 
informal price 
comparison/obtain written 
quotation. 

Service 
Manager  

£10,000 - 
£49,999 

3 quotations No The Procurement Manager 
must manage the 
procurement process. 

Unless a recognised trade or 
profession contract is to be 
used (i.e. JCT) then the 
Council’s standard terms and 
conditions must be used.   
Legal Services must approve 
any deviation from these 
terms and conditions.  
Consideration should also be 
given to the use of Liquidated 
Damages (a fixed or 
ascertainable sum agreed by 
the parties as damages for a 
breach of contract).  If 
Liquidated Damages are not 
considered appropriate then 
the reason should be given 
on the contract file.  The 
Procurement Manager should 
be advised at the start of the 
procurement process. 

Head of Service 

Page 67



 

 
Revised November 2020 

Estimated 
Value 

Minimum 
No. of 
Quotations/
Tenders 

Council 
Seal 

Notes Authorisation to 
award contract 

£50,000 - 
£ 99,999 

Advertised 
on an Open 
basis 

No The Procurement Manager 
must manage the process. In 
addition to the above a 
financial appraisal of all 
tenderers should be 
undertaken as part of the 
procurement process.  
Consideration should also be 
given to whether a 
performance bond is 
appropriate and to the 
principles of the Treaty on the 
Functioning of the European 
Union, including fairness and 
transparency.    

Corporate 
Director 

 £100,000 

and over 

5 tenders  Yes The Procurement Manager 
must manage the 
procurement process.  
Officers must obtain a 
performance bond for all 
construction contracts with a 
value of £500,000 and above. 
For all contracts with a value 
above £100,000 a risk 
assessment should take 
place to ascertain if a 
Performance Bond and/or a 
Parent Company Guarantee 
is required. Section 9.6 
provides details of the risk 
assessment to be 
undertaken. 

Cabinet 

 
9.1.1 Those Officers wishing to enter into contracts must use their best endeavours 

to achieve the minimum number of quotations/tenders referred to in the above 
table.  If having done so it is not possible to achieve the minimum number of 
quotations/tenders a clear note must be placed on the contract file giving the 
reasons why the minimum number could not be achieved. 

 
9.1.2 In situations where there is only one quotation or tender and one of the 

circumstances referred to in Procedure Rule 14 does not apply the agreement 
of the Procurement Manager must be obtained before any contract is entered 
into in respect to all contracts with an estimated value exceeding £10,000. 

Page 68



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 
9.2 How to calculate the estimated value: 

 
When a new supplier is to be used, or a new service / commodity is 
purchased then the following should be considered. 
 

9.2.1 For Capital projects (without maintenance) it should be the Capital Budget 
approved for the purchase. 
 

9.2.2 For Capital projects that include a contractual requirement for maintenance, it 
should be the cost of the capital budget plus the maintenance costs for the 
duration of the maintenance agreement (i.e. a capital purchase of £45,000, 
that includes a maintenance contract for 5 years estimated at £5,000 per 
annum has a total estimated value of £70,000 and is therefore subject to 5 
tenders 
 

9.2.3   For revenue contracts the estimated value should be for either: 
 
(a)  The estimated value of a one off purchase; or 
(b) For recurring requirements with that supplier the estimated shall be 

either the value for the proposed contract length or if it is not known 
how long the arrangement will be in place then the estimated value 
should be 4 times the annual expected expenditure.  

 
9.2.4  The estimated value must exclude Value Added Tax (VAT) but must include 

all other taxes and duties. 
 

9.3 Where a Contractor is commissioned to undertake more than one 
order/contract for a specific department in any one financial year period, then 
the total amount spent with that supplier should not exceed £10,000 without 
conducting a competitive process in accordance with these Rules.  

 
9.4 It is acknowledged that more than one department may utilise the same 

supplier, without knowledge of the expenditure of the other department. The 
procurement department will regularly assess the expenditure and should the 
expenditure on any one supplier exceed £10,000 (in a financial year), then 
those departments should conduct a joint procurement in accordance with 
these rules.  

 
9.5 Investigatory phases- services are often commissioned where projects are at 

the investigatory (initial) stage as to project viability, pilots or design etc. Quite 
often extra resources are required to further re-procure as the project 
progresses. Consideration should be given at the investigatory (initial) stage 
to whether it would deliver better value to seek competitive quotes from the 
outset of the intended project, for each envisaged stage of the project. This 
may reduce the need for re-procuring as the project progresses and the risk of 
delaying the project timetable. 

 
  

Page 69



 

 
Revised November 2020 

9.6 The following table explains the risk assessment to be undertaken 
 

Type and Value of Contract Security required 
Contract Value below £100,000 None 
Service Contract below £1,000,000 in value 
where there is little risk to the Council. Little 
risk would include the following criteria: 

1) All payments are made after all work 
is completed and signed off by the 
Council. 

2) The service could easily be 
performed by another contractor (or 
the Council) who could be engaged 
at short notice. 

3) The cost of someone else 
performing the contract is not 
substantially more (this would be 
ascertained from previous bids 
received). 

None 

Service contract above £1,000,000 in value 
or where the criteria above is not met 

Performance Bond at 10% of the value of 
the contract or parent company guarantee 
to be obtained.  

Where the council  receives an income from 
the Contractor (which is greater than the 
expenditure by the Council) 

Performance Bond at 10% of the value of 
the contract or parent company guarantee 
must be obtained. 

Where the contract is a construction 
contract greater than £500,000 

Performance Bond of 10% of the value of 
the contract must be obtained. 

 
10. INVITATION TO TENDER LIST AND TENDER EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Where the estimated value of the contract is over £10,000 a tender list must 
be compiled by one of the following methods and the Tender Evaluation 
Criteria must be agreed at the level set out in the table below. 
 

Value of 
Contract 

Method of Selecting List Authority to agree 
Tender Evaluation 

Criteria 

£10,000 - 
£49,999 

The officer should consult trade 
journals and directories of 
organisations that give details of 
companies that trade in the field of 
work. Officers should use reasonable 
endeavours to obtain at least one 
quotation from an organisation based 
in the Borough of Welwyn Hatfield. 
This organisation must compete on an 
equal basis with other bidders. The 
officer may decide to advertise the 
contract. If this is the case, and the 
value is greater than £25,000, then the 
opportunity must also be advertised on 

Head of Service 

Page 70



 

 
Revised November 2020 

the Contracts Finder website. 

£50,000 - 
£190,000 (for 
supplies or 
services 
contracts or up to 
£4,800,000 for 
works contracts 

An advertisement should be placed on 
the Supply Hertfordshire Portal and the 
Contracts Finder website inviting 
applicants to submit a bid 

Corporate Director 
or Member 
Procurement Board 
if established in 
accordance with 
section 26 

 £190,000 and 
above (for 
Services and 
Supplies) 
contracts, 
£664,000  (Light 
Touch Regime 
for Services) or 
£4,800,000 and 
above for Works 
contracts 

An advertisement should be placed in 
the Official Journal of the European 
Union 

Corporate Director 
or Member 
Procurement Board 
if established in 
accordance with 
section 26 

 
11. PREQUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRES 
 
11.1 Prequalification questionnaires should only be used where the procurement is 

above the EU Procurement threshold and with the prior agreement of the 
Procurement Manager. Generally all procurements should be let on an Open 
basis (i.e a single stage tender in which any contractor who wishes to bid may 
do so). 

 
 

12. TENDER EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
12.1 For all contracts with a value of between £10,000 and £50,000, the contracts 

must be awarded on the basis of one of the two options that must be 
determined by the relevant Head of Service in consultation with the 
Procurement Manager. 
 
(a) The cheapest acceptable tender (the tender that meets all delivery and 

specification requirements) or 
(b) A pre-set and disclosed price/quality criteria.  
 

12.2 For all contracts with a value of £50,000 or over, tenders must be evaluated 
on a mixture of price and quality. The percentage split between price and 
quality (the evaluation criteria) should be determined by the relevant Officer or 
Procurement Board, as set out in the table at section 10. 
 

12.3 The tender evaluation criteria must clearly be laid out in all tender documents 
 

Page 71



 

 
Revised November 2020 

13. SPECIFICATION 
 
13.1 All invitations to quote or tender for works must be based on a definitive 

specification.  The purpose of a service specification is to define the Council’s 
objectives for the service to be provided and the requirements of potential 
contractors.  As far as possible requirements should be specified in terms of 
output and performance rather than how the potential contractor is to go about 
providing the service (input based). 

 
13.2 Technical specifications should refer to national standards or schemes and 

relevant European Union standards or equivalent where available. 
 
14. ALTERNATIVE PROCEDURES IN PRESCRIBED CIRCUMSTANCES 
 

The market place does not always allow the procedures which are set out in 
the table above to be followed.   
 
Contracts can also be entered into by an appropriate officer in the following 
circumstances (subject to compliance at all times with European procurement 
rules): 
 
(a) For the supply of goods or services where there is only one supplier 

and no acceptable alternative, following consultation with the 
Procurement Manager. 

(b) Instruction of legal counsel/barristers - Where it is in the best interests 
of the Council to directly instruct a particular legal counsel/barrister 
because they are one of only a few suppliers  who  have expertise or 
specialist knowledge or substantial experience or skills in a relevant 
area.  

(c) For any extension, addition to or maintenance to existing buildings, 
works plant or equipment contracts, the matter will be referred to 
Cabinet for a decision to waive these rules. Cabinet  will consider if this 
can only be done satisfactorily by the original contractor or supplier 

(d) As part of a consortium (where the Council is not the lead authority). 

(e) When the proposed Contractor is on a Framework which has been 
tendered by a central government or other body (e.g. the Crown 
Commercial Services) and the Council is entitled to ‘call off’ from that 
Framework. 

(f) Where there is an urgent Health and Safety requirement, subject to the 
prior approval of the Council’s Risk and Resilience Manager. 

(g) By the Chief Executive certifying that there is extreme urgency, after 
consulting the Leader of the Council and relevant Cabinet portfolio 
holder.  The reasons for extreme urgency must be recorded in writing 
and placed on the contract file 

(h) Where the Cabinet considers it desirable on commercial grounds to 
accept a quotation from a contractor already engaged by the Council 
on a project provided that further services have a connection with the 

Page 72



 

 
Revised November 2020 

original project and that the price is no more than 50% of the original 
contract sum. 

(i) For loans arrangements. 

(j) On behalf of another authority where the agency agreement provides 
that the procurement rules of that authority are to be followed. 

(k) Where the Cabinet agrees a report from a Corporate Director detailing 
a case where it is to the advantage of the Council that these rules 
should be waived.  

 
RECEIPT AND OPENING OF TENDERS 
 
15.1 The Council is committed to using the e-tendering system for any project 

valued greater than £10,000.00 
 
15.2 The E-Procurement system is time-locked and cannot be accessed by the 

Council until after the tender return deadline. After the deadline the tender-box  
will be opened by the Procurement Manager  
 

 
15. TENDER CLARIFICATION (AND EVALUATION) 
 
15.1 After tenders have been opened clarification may be necessary to check 

apparent omissions, arithmetical errors, completeness of documentation etc.  
In seeking clarification all communications with tenderers should be properly 
recorded and must be issued through the E-Procurement System.  The 
objective at this stage is to evaluate the tenders as submitted and it follows 
therefore that under no circumstances should any tenderer be given the 
opportunity to engage in negotiations with regard to pricing or any other 
aspects of the tender.  Clarification should be obtained solely to the extent 
necessary for a clear evaluation.   

  
15.2 To ensure impartiality and in accordance with good procurement practice, the 

price and quality evaluation of any bid must be undertaken independently of 
each other. Any officer (or consultant working on behalf of the Council), must 
not have  knowledge of any pricing information when undertaking the quality 
evaluation) 
 

16. THE LETTING OF CONTRACTS 
 
16.1 For procurements less than £50,000 in value, then it is acceptable to issue a 

purchase order. The purchase order must include: 
 

(1) The name of the supplier 
(2) The specification  
(3) The date the order needs to be completed by 
(4) The total value of the order with any payment terms 
(5) The purchase order number for the contract 
(6) A link to the Councils standard terms and conditions (unless different 

terms and conditions apply in which case the Purchase Order must 

Page 73



 

 
Revised November 2020 

specify:  (a) that the Council’s standard terms and conditions do not 
apply to the particular purchase; and (b) the terms and conditions which 
do apply to the particular purchase) 

 
16.2 Any procurement over £50,000 must be completed by a formal contract 

document (which is usually drafted by procurement and completed by the 
legal department)  and must contain:- 

 

 a description of the services, works or goods to be supplied; 
 

 the price and any discounts; 
 

 commencement and completion dates including the provision of liquidated 
damages in the case of late completion in the circumstances referred to in 
Procedure Rule 8; 

 

 delivery date, if appropriate; 
 

 the terms of payment; 
 

 appropriate insurance generally including £10 million cover in respect of 
public liability, £500,000 cover for professional indemnity liability (where 
relevant) and employers liability insurance, if applicable, in accordance 
with the legal requirement. The relevant officer may decide to undertake a 
risk assessment of the project which may result in the level of insurance 
increasing or decreasing in accordance with the risks identified 

 
16.3.1   In addition the following controls should be present:- 
 

 the contract between the Contractor and the Council must be in writing; 
 

 the contract must be signed by authorised signatory(ies) of the Contractor 
and the Council and be executed as a deed under seal if its value is  
£100,000 or over. 

 

 A contract which may be executed by signing only, in accordance with 
these Contract Procedure Rules, may be signed with wet and/or electronic 
signature(s) on behalf of the parties to the contract and, on behalf of the 
Council may be signed by the relevant Head of Service who shall notify 
the Legal Services Manager of the signing of the Contract and the Legal 
Services Manager shall ensure that details of the Contract are entered into 
the Signing Register. 

 

 In circumstances where a contract is being signed electronically by/on 
behalf of a Contractor, the Contractor shall, at the same time as providing 
the Council with the electronically signed contract, provide the Council with 
a separate statement (signed by the person(s) who has/have signed the 
contract) certifying that: 

 

Page 74



 

 
Revised November 2020 

o the person(s) signing the contract has/ve authority to do so; 
o the person(s) signing the contract intend/s to authenticate the contract; 

and  
o any and all formalities and legal requirements relating to execution of 

the contract are satisfied. 
 

16.3.2 Where a contract or other legal document is required to be executed as a 
deed the Contractor/other party(ies) may execute the contract electronically 
provided that the Contractor/other party(ies) shall each do so by signature of 
two (2) authorised signatories and shall provide to the Council, at the same 
time as providing the electronically executed deed to the Council, a separate 
statement certifying that: 
 

o the person(s) executing the contract on behalf of the Contractor/other 
party(ies) has/ve authority to do so; 

o the person(s) executing the contract on behalf of the Contractor/other 
party(ies) intend/s to authenticate the contract; and  

o any and all formalities and legal requirements relating to execution of 
the contract are satisfied. 

 
16.3.3 The Head of Law and Administration is authorised to take any decision(s), in 

relation to execution of contracts and other legal documentation, as is 
necessary to secure the uninterrupted continuation of the day-to-day business 
of the Council during the Covid-19 epidemic up to and including 7 May 2021. 

 
 
17. NOTIFICATIONS TO POTENTIAL CONTRACTORS 
 
17.1 The successful Contractor should be notified promptly in writing, through the 

E-Procurement Portal that they have been selected to carry out the contract.  
It should be confirmed with the Contractor that they are available to 
commence the contract and that they will undertake the work to the terms and 
conditions of their tender. 

 
17.2 Unsuccessful contractors should be informed, in writing that they have not 

been selected to carry out the contract at the same time as the successful 
Contractor. 

 
17.3 In the event that the selected Contractor does not confirm that they are still 

available to carry out the work to the terms and conditions of the tender then 
the contract can be offered to the second best tenderer unless the 
Procurement is subject to the European Procurement Directives when the 
project must be re-advertised  

 
17.4 Potential contractors should also be notified of any of the following decisions 

taken in respect of them:- 
 

 not to invite to tender when a request has been made; 
 

 not to accept the submission of a tender; 

Page 75



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 

 not to approve, select or nominate sub-contractors; 
 

17.5 In the event of a potential contractor making a written request for information  
regarding any contract decision, the appropriate officer must provide a written 
response detailing the reasons for such decision within 15 days of the receipt of 
the potential contractor’s request (or within 3 days if the procurement is subject 
to EU procurement procedures). 

 
18 VARIATION TO CONTRACTS 

 
18.1 The authority to accept a variation to contract is dependent upon the value of 

the change (calculated as the estimated value of the change for the remainder 
of the contract term): 

 

 Up to £49,999 – Head of Service (in consultation with the Procurement 
Manager) 

 Between £50,000 and £99,999 – Corporate Director 

  £100,000 and over – Cabinet 
 

18.2 The terms of the variation must be in writing and stored with the original 
contract. 

 
19 EXTENSION OF CONTRACTS 
 
19.1 An extension to a contract can only be made if there is provision within the 

existing contract. The decision to extend the contract is dependent upon the 
value of the extension and shall be agreed at the following level: 
 

 Up to £49,999 – Head of Service in consultation with the Procurement 
Manager) 

 Between £50,000 and £99,999 – Corporate Director 

  £100,000 and over – Cabinet 
 
19.2 The terms of the extension must be in writing and stored with the original 

contract. 
 
20 ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION OF CONTRACT 
 
20.1 Assignment or Novation of a contract can only be made if there is provision in 

the contract to allow this to happen. Any Assignment or Novation must be 
agreed by the relevant Corporate Director and checks should be made as to 
the status of the new contractual party to ensure it meets all the original 
selection criteria and is able to perform the contract. The assignment or 
novation shall not affect the performance of the contract in any way to the 
detriment of the Council. 

 
20.2 The terms of the assignment or novation must be in writing and stored with 

the original contract. 
 

Page 76



 

 
Revised November 2020 

20.3 If the remaining value of a contract which is to be assigned or novated is 
above the European Threshold, the Procurement Manager must be consulted 
before authority is given to assign/novate the contract to a new Contractor. 
 

21 CURRENCY  
 
21.1 All contracts entered into should fix the price in Sterling.  Any changes in the 

value of money which have a material impact on the value of a contract must 
be reported to the Section 151 Officer or their deputy for report and 
consideration by the Cabinet.  Any proposals to contract in a currency other 
than Sterling on the basis that it represents value for money must be agreed 
by the Section 151 Officer or their deputy  

 

22 NOMINATED SUB-CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS 
 
22.1 Where a sub-contractor or supplier is to be nominated to a main contractor 

the appropriate officer must invite quotations or tenders in accordance with 
these Contract Procedure Rules (for the appointment of this subcontractor) 
and authorise the letting of the sub-contract between the sub-contractor or 
supplier and main Contractor. 

 
22.2 The sub-contractor or supplier must send with their quote or tender an 

undertaking to work for the main contractor and to indemnify the main 
contractor for the sub-contracted works or materials and provide a collateral 
warranty in the Council’s favour. 

 
23 OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS AND TECHNICAL OFFICERS 
 
23.1 Outside consultants and technical officers employed to supervise or to be 

otherwise involved with the operation of contracts must follow any provision of 
these Procedural Rules which are relevant to their appointed duties.  Their 
contract for services must stipulate this requirement. 

 
24 BRIBERY AND FRAUD 
 
24.1 The Section 151 Officer or their deputy) shall keep a Fraud Risks Register 

upon which is identified potential contractors who are considered by the 
Council to be at high risk from benefit fraud, abuse or misuse in connection 
with the potential contractor’s business and/or its employees, sub-contractors 
or agents. 

 
24.2 The current statutory provisions on bribery and fraud are contained in the 

Bribery Act 2010 ( the Act) . The four key principle points to note in relation to 
offences under the Act are:  

 

 The Act extends the crime of bribery to cover all private and public 
sector transactions (previously bribery offences were confined to 
transactions involving public officials and agents). These offences 
cover all legal persons (which includes companies and individuals).  

 

Page 77



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 The Act creates an offence of failing to prevent bribery which applies to 
commercial organisations. A commercial organisation is stated as 
being a company, corporate body or partnership but not a sole trader. 
Section 7 provides that a relevant commercial organisation, (‘C’), 
commits an offence if a person, (‘A’), associated with it, bribes another 
person intending either to obtain or retain business for C or an 
advantage in the conduct of business for C. An offence is committed if 
the conduct complained of would constitute the commission by A of an 
offence contrary to two other sections of the Act (which cover the 
general offence of bribery and the more specific offence of bribing a 
foreign public official). The Act defines A as a person who performs 
services for or on behalf of C. A may therefore be a service provider, 
subsidiary, contractor, agent or employee and they may be based in or 
outside of England and Wales. An organisation will only have a 
defence to this offence if it can show it had ‘adequate procedures’ in 
place to prevent bribery.  

 

 The scope of the Act is extensive – the offences are very broadly 
defined and it has significant extra-territorial reach.  

 

 The offences contained in the Act carry criminal penalties for 
individuals and organisations. For individuals, a maximum prison 
sentence of ten years and/or an unlimited fine can be imposed; for 
companies, an unlimited fine can be imposed.  

 
The Council, its employees and contractors/bidders are covered by the Act. 

 
24.3 All contracts over £50,000 in value must contain a relevant Anti-Bribery 

Clause. 
 
24.4 Officers should be alert to indicators of potential bribery in procurement which 

may include: 
 

 Unjustified and unexplained favourable treatment of a particular supplier from 
a particular contracting employee over a period of time, including number or 
amount of contracts awarded to a given firm or supplier 

 Unjustified high prices and important price increases 

 Low quality and late delivery acceptance by procurement official 

 Unusually high volume of purchases to a single source 

 Unusually high volume of purchases approved by a single purchaser 

 Unnecessary or inappropriate purchases 

 Recurrent and systematic rejection of firms who ultimately act as 
subcontractors 

 official accepting inappropriate gifts or entertainment 

 Close relationship (including social) between the official and the vendor 

 Unexplained sudden increase in wealth of the procurement official 

 Supplier has a reputation of paying bribes 

 Commercial contracts different from the suppliers core business 

 Intermediary charges high commission, claims special influence on buyer 

Page 78



 

 
Revised November 2020 

 Unnecessary middleman involved in contacts or purchases 

 High risk sectors or countries 

 official has undisclosed outside business 

 Procurement official declining promotions to other non-procurement position 

 Procurement official acting beyond or below normal scope of duties in 
awarding or administering contracts 

 Long and unexplained delays between announcement of the winning bidder 
and the signing of the contact (this may be an indication of the negotiation of 
the bribe) 

 Frequent open or restrictive calls for tender that are inconclusive, ending in 
negotiated procedures 
 

25. ROLES OF MEMBERS IN PROCUREMENT 
 
25.1 It is recognised that Members of the Council should be fully involved in the 

Procurement process for major projects. 
 
25.2 Before the commencement of any procurement with a value of between 

£100,000 and £1,000,000.00 the relevant officer should consult with the 
relevant Executive Member who will decide if it is a routine matter or not: 

 Routine Matters – Officers will undertake the procurement and the award of 
the contract will be authorised by an Executive Member Decision Notice.  

 Non Routine – Referred to the General Procurement Board (and Cabinet will 
agree the award of contract). 

 
25.3 If the value of the contract is greater than £1,000,000 the General 

Procurement Board will oversee the procurement and the award decision will 
be made by Cabinet. 

 
25.4 From time to time Specific Procurement Boards will be established to oversee 

major procurement related projects. The decision to set up a Specific 
Procurement Board is made by the Executive Member by means of an 
Executive Member Decision Notice.  

 
25.5 The terms of reference of any Member Procurement Board will be agreed by 

the relevant board, but is likely to include: 
 

(a) Agreement of evaluation criteria for the application stage 
(b) Agreement of the tender list 
(c) Agreement of the evaluation criteria for tender stage 
(d) Undertaking site visits (if appropriate) 
(e) Recommendation of award of contract to Cabinet. 

 
25.6 All decision in this section 25 made by Executive Members Decision Notices 

must be signed by two Cabinet Members, usually the Executive Member and 
the Chair of the General Procurement Board, or the Executive Member and 
the Leader of the Council (where the Executive Members is also chair of the 
General Procurement Board). 

 

Page 79



 

 
Revised November 2020 

25.7 In no circumstances shall the Member Procurement Boards have the authority 
to award or enter into any contract. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 80



-1- 
 
Constitution Review Group 
4 November 2019 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the CONSTITUTION REVIEW GROUP held on Monday 
4 November 2019 at 7.00 pm in the Chestnut Board Room, Campus East, Welwyn 
Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE 

 

PRESENT: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 
F.Thomson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

  J.Caliskan, M.Cowan, G.Hayes, K.Thorpe and S.Wrenn 

 
OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning & Governance) (N.Long) 
Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) (K.Ng) 
Head of Law and Administration (M.Martinus) 
Governance Services Manager (G.Seal) 
Principal Governance Officer (A.Marston) 

 

 
14. MINUTES 

 

A slight amendment was made to a paragraph under section 11 of the minutes of the 
meeting from 16 October 2019 for clarification. The minutes were then approved as a 
correct record of the meeting. 

 
15. COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 

 

Following previous conversations around the dangers of setting an actual figure to 
define “significant financial implication”, wording was sought that would allow for a 
motion to be on the agenda for council and for discussion (and a vote) to take 
place. After debate, the following wording was proposed by the Director 
(Resources, Environment and Cultural Services). 
 

 
 

The Group was in agreement with these changes.  

Page 81



-2- 
Constitution Review Group 
4 November 2019 
 

16. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES 
 

Ian Parry from the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) talked through his draft report 
which was circulated to group members. He explained that this is the starting gate, 
an indication of ideas the council should be looking at. The suggestion is to look at 
function of scrutiny before the form it needs to take. Behaviours, relationships, 
communication and the way information is utilised: select what to scrutinise and 
what gets prioritised.  
 

From observing and reviewing the council’s current scrutiny process, three things 
stand out as being different about scrutiny here: 

1. The process is driven by KPIs which is not really an area where scrutiny 
can add value 

2. The committees do not perform  much strategic scrutiny or pre-decision 
scrutiny 

3. “Doing a scrutiny” seems to happen at task and finish groups. 
Rebalancing needs to be done. 

 

Cross-party policy shaping is good but tends to happen at Cabinet Parking and 
Planning Panel and Cabinet Housing Panel(Executive panels) which, while public 
meetings, are not scrutiny.  
 

The four fundamentals of scrutiny are: 
1. Providing a ‘critical friend’ challenge  
2. Reflecting the voice and concerns of the public  
3. Taking the lead and owning the scrutiny process  
4. Making an impact on the delivery of public services 

 

There currently seems to be a misalignment of understanding between officers 
and scrutiny; with the work managed by officers with what is available when, rather 
than things that scrutiny committee want to be scrutinising. 
 

It was noted that some councils are bringing in co-opted advisors, either meeting 
by meeting or on a semi-permanent basis. They provide key witness to scrutiny 
committees.  
 

The Group agreed that the next step was for a workshop facilitated by CfPS and 
open to all members to be arranged as soon as the timetable allows. 
 
 

17. WELWYN GARDEN CITY ESTATE MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

The suggestion was made that the terms of reference for the Estate Management 
Appeals Panel were widened to include changes to EMS policy.  
 

There is currently nowhere within the Constitution that states where EMS policy is 
set however the terms of reference for EOSC talks about it having some remit 
around planning policy. While EMS is separate from planning this could be a 
logical place for relevant policy to be discussed, although matters relating to estate 
management are an Executive function.  
 

It was also noted that the Constitution currently states the membership of EMAP 
needs to be politically proportional but what if all the members in those wards were 
all one party? Proportionality would then not be possible. 
 

Officers were asked to come up with some further proposals for a future meeting 
of the Group. 

Page 82



-3- 
 
Constitution Review Group 
4 November 2019 
 

18. SOCIAL MEDIA PROTOCOL 
 

A draft social media protocol which was circulated to the Group with the agenda. 
 

Discussion took place around the wording of some areas of the protocol and 
amendments were proposed. The council’s communications team will also be 
consulted on the protocol. 
 

If approved by this Group, the protocol would then be submitted to the Council’s 
Standards Committee for comment before being submitted to Council for approval.  
 
Training on this would be arranged once approved by members. 
   

This item will be brought back to a future meeting of the Constitution Review 
Group should there be substantive amendments. 
 

19. DATES OF MEETINGS 
 

The planned future meetings of the group are as follows: 
 

Tuesday 10 December 2019 - 

New date to be sought  
and communicated to Group 

Outward Facing Functions – Public Engagement 
Contract Procedure Rules 
 

Thursday 20 February 2020 - Financial Procedure Rules 
 

 
 
Meeting ended at 9.00 pm 
AM 
 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Item No: 10 
Main author: Alison Marston 
Not Ward Specific 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 23 NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2021/22 
  
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to the timetable of meetings for the 
2021/22 Municipal Year. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the timetable setting out dates of meetings for the Municipal Year 2021/22, 
as attached at Appendix A be approved.  

3 Explanation 

3.1 At the meeting of Full Council on 26 September 2019, Members agreed that the 
timetable of meetings can be approved at any ordinary Council meeting during 
the Municipal Year, rather than having to wait until the Annual Council meeting in 
May. 

3.2 This facilitates effective forward planning both for Members and Officers in the 
transaction of Council business and as part of the modernisation of decision-
making processes and procedures.   

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 None. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 None. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 None 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 None 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 None 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 None 

  

Page 85

Agenda Item 12



- 2 - 

10 Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1 The committee timetable supports the corporate priorities under “Our Council” to 
ensure “Value for Money” and putting the “Customer First”. 

11 Equality and Diversity 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the proposal as it is not required. 

 
Name of author Alison Marston 01707 357444 
Title Governance Services Manager 
Date 6 November 2020 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   
None 

Page 86



Committee Calendar 2021-2022

Saturday 1 1

Sunday 2 1 2 1

Monday 3 2 1 3 2

Tuesday 4 1 3 2 4 1 1 3

Wednesday 5 2 4 1 3 1 5 2 2 4

Thursday 6 3 1 5 2 4 2 6 3 3 5

Friday 7 4 2 6 3 1 5 3 7 4 4 1 6

Saturday 8 5 3 7 4 2 6 4 8 5 5 2 7

Sunday 9 6 4 8 5 3 7 5 9 6 6 3 8

Monday 10 7 5 9 6 4 8 6 10 7 7 4 9

Tuesday 11 8 6 10 7 5 9 7 11 8 8 5 10

Wednesday 12 9 7 11 8 6 10 8 12 9 9 6 11

Thursday 13 10 8 12 9 7 11 9 13 10 10 7 12

Friday 14 11 9 13 10 8 12 10 14 11 11 8 13

Saturday 15 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 15 12 12 9 14

Sunday 16 13 11 15 12 10 14 12 16 13 13 10 15

Monday 17 14 12 16 13 11 15 13 17 14 14 11 16

Tuesday 18 15 13 17 14 12 16 14 18 15 15 12 17

Wednesday 19 16 14 18 15 13 17 15 19 16 16 13 18

Thursday 20 17 15 19 16 14 18 16 20 17 17 14 19

Friday 21 18 16 20 17 15 19 17 21 18 18 15 20

Saturday 22 19 17 21 18 16 20 18 22 19 19 16 21

Sunday 23 20 18 22 19 17 21 19 23 20 20 17 22

Monday 24 21 19 23 20 18 22 20 24 21 21 18 23

Tuesday 25 22 20 24 21 19 23 21 25 22 22 19 24

Wednesday 26 23 21 25 22 20 24 22 26 23 23 20 25

Thursday 27 24 22 26 23 21 25 23 27 24 24 21 26

Friday 28 25 23 27 24 22 26 24 28 25 25 22 27

Saturday 29 26 24 28 25 23 27 25 29 26 26 23 28

Sunday 30 27 25 29 26 24 28 26 30 27 27 24 29

Monday 31 28 26 30 27 25 29 27 31 28 28 25 30

Tuesday 29 27 31 28 26 30 28 29 26 31

Wednesday 30 28 29 27 29 30 27

Thursday 29 30 28 30 31 28

Friday 30 29 31 29

Saturday 31 30 30

Sunday 31

HIGHWAYS

COUNCIL

GPB

GPB

GPB

2021
May AprilFebruaryDecemberOctoberAugustJune

2022
NovemberSeptemberJuly

DMC

GPB

GRANTS

CABINET

GPB GPB

MayMarchJanuary

GRANTS EMAP

CPPP CPPP CPPP CPPP

ELECTIONS

EMAP

CABINET

CABINET

CWCP

CPPP

CABINET

STANDARDS

Bank HolidayB/H OSC

DMC ELECTION

COUNCIL

OSC

CABINET CABINET

OSC

CABINET

HCC

OSC

CABINET

CPPP

GPB

DMC HCC

STANDARDS CHP

GPB

CHP

CABINET

CPPP

DMC

SPEC.CAB

CPPP COUNCILEMAP COUNCIL

HCCHCC CPPP

EMAPEMAP

CHP CWCP CHP OSC

COUNCIL

Bank Holiday

DMC DMCCPPP

ANN. COUNCIL CWCP CWCP Bank Holiday ANN. COUNCILSTANDARDS

SPEC. COUNCIL

CHP STANDARDS

LICENSING LICENSING GPB

HCC HCC

LICENSING

DMC HCC

Bank Holiday CABINET

CPPP

Bank Holiday AUDIT AUDIT AUDIT

CABINET

Bank Holiday Bank Holiday AUDIT

GPB

DMC

GRANTS

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8a Hertfordshire Growth Board
	8b Council Tax Support Scheme
	8c Local Plan
	Minutes

	9 NOTICES OF MOTIONS
	10 MEMBERS' ALLOWANCE SCHEME
	10 - IRP -  APPENDIX A (IRP Minutes 20200929 Approved)
	10 - IRP -  APPENDIX B (Proposed changes to Members' Allowance Scheme)

	11 REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION
	11 - Appendix 1 - Minutes CRG 23 July 2020
	11 - Appendix 2 - Minutes CRG 2020.10.26
	11 - Appendix 3 - Article 4 - The Council
	11 - Appendix 4 - Responsibility for Non-Executive Functions
	11 - Appendix 5 - CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES - updated November 2020
	11 - Appendix 6 - Minutes CRG 2019.11.04

	12 TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2021/22
	12 - 2021-22 Committee Timetable
	Sheet1



